=\
e Same s Rt #MA.R050,059 & A yRiFeT

=
farga Scares wro fofiee
(¥ U, R0& 3 FAIRNH wifa)

frga Seures Fw ffiee et =4t aiffes ararer avmr aeTas g geaer
# YU ARG W qa FraeT e af 3050,059 F1 affe yaeT.-

AT AT HeTTew,

forga JeareT et fifteest 4t @it arare awm geamTe Wk T
SUEAT g ATHT T O FETINIEEE, uIeE T SeerEE,
GHRTTRT FEAA T TIEIEE, TEINEF AN AR A, AT
SARKTIEE T T9 W] ITRYT G0 WETIEeEaTs Hraia! Taas ai
TN W Thelle Bl T@NTd T ey |

T VRHTHT QT HFI1eh! Tl Qrafaen! Aedqers] 2aae sradiar aifs
af R0c0/059 FI AME ARiaET Feqd T A TEg |

1. HFR FEIE Iuy:

forga fopra Serg w0 qeeers etk we, T
TG FASTHT AN B UF, 3083 AR, 093 WRR Y AT AT T

T TRUHT BT |

TAAYATE AT BHTd T TGS Feave WS | e Ferga
RIS IANT T4 SIS AAATg e U=, swhy wifty, waferr, fafo
T, T SAEAIADT B T TCANT AFaROTERT A PO T TuapT
ERURECIRE RS

TS LB Foiieh! JAIE, TR T faaeorest it qafur Rt srfars
I YIAHHATHT TEHT § | TWHR, Feies, adaes Meuse MeaasT
SATHHT ATA. 050/5 9 Wl = GFAAT TATYT T TABNT Fofiep! Fdane
TET faga guelar Wied s HRa 33v0 AEE e g v datons
I JAGT Hew Ahd @ TRusr amisEERsT wy wRd awar 4o
HEE QDT G| B U WERS 6.8, R03Y G Frgd Ieue e

& gt




o SaEy wv Riftte IAH.R050/05 & affas wfagT

RE,%00 AT, TS wed RS G| I AEd TR T 99 FEO anr
AR YRS e RS W@Wﬁmﬂwﬁﬁwmmﬁal
mmwmmﬁmmwm

mﬁﬁmﬁﬁ@w@ﬁmwww |

. ARfE af 050,059 B FRERP! ReEmas:

A HFIA ST Y AT AT THEETH T 8 FeT FHFIHT Ja¢ e
TSSO T YadT 9 @H gl A9 HEIERT g s
TEEH AT AT HET Poble FUll oA AT Seregd
AT (Y50 HAT), wraieT sen wefga s (viy Hr) T ERlS
FUTCAT STATTIAH Felferga AT (9203 HaT,) B gaem ATA T T
T I ST ASTEEST feqa qeirear Semae e wes W g |
YT T el ALY STAY ATASAIRT R aregar eqa=at
HT ACqH T Eh! G |

W AR S P 9y A et geq Wit S R smir
v 1 forge e fmmrare e R059,/03 0% W1 fraa SeaeeT W
TACTT U6 9 Wha! g | G S a9 9y W @Y wied At ant
forge s e St avr Rt wenRE w9k ERGEEIRIER)
T, i qor Hemer 1w @ G2 whRAETE B @i B ave
T e ferga wieorad sy T g |

T SR e TMGeell BIEgMEy H¥aql foifHdse SWgeen o
| VARTEE Felagd A (906 AAL) T WIGeA-Y S A
(1%0.& 7.AL) ®I Feaad qan AT & o s @A g | A
AT S add A (Y Har) 78 S Rieesr aw! 9w
FFA! TAE BESER HHoeT fffeewrha iy seeuaT 5 | @ a9
FIAl T TS gEgMER Hrolt Roifdgsr Iqea T T8 o wfdergar ated

AFGET BTESIER BT Rifiee T T8 qeTe g @i FeeEd
R - o




farg ST v ffies A1.9.3050/05 F e FiiaaT

=
AT (9,9 FAT,) BT R 1 MR Tered wRFamr Rl g T B
I BT T4 Yol SUIh SqawTa q i IRt A WHIRe Buike

IS R0IY-R0RR TUR ¥ B WE@a! g |

FHFIAID] YEANTT G HEA T GEINTT GG ARG, R06< &I Tl
R JUIHT (R.9) AT FHIYIHl GAS TqUT TR GI-AhT ©UH TEHFT 37T
AT B e WwWahl g |

() T@IgeTT gfafd |

Q) ifgw sgaeagT afafa |

(
(3T) HE FHYT SFaEAdT Q|
(5r) Feafy, Tcd ST TAT ATHT A |

R.] FHEAIGRT WA AT T HEAHH:

< QI BN TAALTH TAGGA ATASTIH] &eqa graaig deaas yiadas
TR T FE e dersd wdt R dia s qur e Serd
SATIISIT FTAT-aeR] ST ool |
FTAfaTTB] SO A |

% Go<] WIRTHT QAR AT Q4 AL o8 99 Q% #an e 1@ 30
HAT. ETHATD! TS FAfT o e |

< iy @il Seagad A (.9 #.37) Fafre @it aeg | st
FFI ffiee at T8 Fwire! SR ofe |

< FHFIATD! IOl STIRAIRT AN AT SqaedTad HIafRE qar 17 |

< USfIehT IUGRH sgaeddT 9T URETee! @Rl WHifdes HHie Are

RORY-RORR IR Y HH@eh AHIdEE T&idhd 9 | E
/@}" W%ﬁ\?\rﬂ
El




foem SR B Rife

Aq,3050/05q HI e gfaags

R.3 BB AT T A=A =qEaiE gre:
T SR e et 3 gar sdarT uwT 3eEee! Wike SRR
WHe! Il SRS TG FET Rl G| I THR T WRA PR a1}
A WER e Foff samar qor Fafa T wrera weitar swar g1 AR
T qEHE A AR e few T qu e wwaT @
R@w™e® JICA, NHPC, Power China International TR GeameedT IRy
SYATIIT AT (A1 i Aigiefe awsvemr goava IREH g

3. BB TSI AEET:

. BB TH IR @A | TR & %,
(%)
TENE  BEgNER ®vr fifiee Y 4,00,00,000 /-
9.
R, | IgeRT BESWER wEA ffies 3 90,8 9,650,000 /-
3. T3y saHaRy st Riffee 16 3,%Y,00,000/-
e » 10 RY,00,00,000/-
Y. | @ fofice
T TR e HE e 99 }%,40,000/-
4.
€. | R We weer fifiee A 4,00,00,000 /-
©. e e Rifies 4 Y,%%,00,000 /-
STEAT 4,90,315,30,000

s o 059/05% WH FHIRI AARTA WH T ARASAEEd! Hef
WIH SRS bl ¥R IR TSEE | a9 e aver &y

o

JUdiedg®d! el HremoH @Hhl § |

i

,\MN“




P

faga ST werl Riftes ar g A4.3050/0%1 F Ale AfideT
——
Y. yer faxia g =
¥.9 9 BT geT faia gy e Igmeam /a9
ife af afe/ (=)

foraor 30%0/0%9 R0R /50 &@H . FIRNIG
TXh! AT dN ¥R,5%,500,000 | ¥,35,2%,00,000 - -
AR BT I dolt 3,6§,00,000 3,65,00,000 2
eI ATeRT ¥Y,63,30,¥5% | ¥0,0¥,9§,5%0 LHUR,R0MRY% | vy
q7F <Icd 8,90,5%,%%% £,99,89,9¥6 | (9,50,58,%¥s) | (95%)
ESE QUSRI DI ¥,0%,33,33,05Y | ¥,0¥,33,55,030 |  3,%%,3Y,0%\ 1%
o wvarlt e St 1,09,99,35,95% | ©&,50,9%,0¥3 | 9¥,30,93,¥3% | q&%
B YIRAT @ FEI ¥¥,%%,¥ 3,008 RVYR3IVYY | 95,90,0%,335 | €&y
ST AT 1,99,0%,38,4%% RRUYOX 139 | 95,%9,39,¥95 | Roy
=R @RI RY,E5,0%,3%R 9R05R9UNY Y,80,40,665 | %%
S T Heara R,3%,59,3Y,34% | RBEINIIEES | (XR,%3,06,298) | (92%)
FA qFH ¥,0%,33,33,05Y | 40¥335503L 3,R5,3Y%,0%0 9%
ST AT 3 AREL R9,RE,¥Y,0606% RCOYBRRLY | (18,¥9,R19,9%&) | (&%)
A YT @™ (4,3R,0€,83Y) (¥90R ¥ 1B £9,0%,R38 | 93y
AT T 3 @ (5,¥%,05,539) (80909530 YYERRY | ¥Ix
SAD T egaer (4,5%,99,49%) (¥YRLEREN) | (U, T, ¥YE) | (L©y%)
ga AT/ () LMR,55,%0% | 93,89,98,553 | (5,09,36,80T) | (43%)
i N TR (E ) 9.39 3.90

Y.} FHIADHT AT G
g ST Fve ffieesd! dole! S e |Ral 9

¥.R. 19

FFAIST AEFHT Tl €.20,00,00,00,000 | -(FERF G ¥ vt

) Wl T SIS €.900 |- HT <A 30 HAS I IR

oo TRUHT 5 |

R

O~

oYy




faga e Hedt Rifee

T
a
ATF.R050/059 &I AfeE g

&
=

¥.R.] HIHIR deprer S E €.90,00,00,00,000 | -(FERG T4 7 Bt
) WHT G | W G 5,900 (- HT g 90 FAS AT GTERO

QAT favrer TRwe 7 |

¥..3 FFAH Fo A G WY .¥,35,25,00,000 | -(FER TR A7 A5
FAS ASITed W@ THA A) 3057 R WG T 36T 9TH |

R gt [

sis wie W=l .

TXHT UH! @

T &7 sl T,

T WHR, Fll, Teea aariRiarg
TG

R,00,00,00,000/

R,00,00,00,000/

AU PR, 7S A=

¥0,00,00,000/

%0,00,00,000/

AT THIR, P, ST T G4
WA A=

%0,00,00 000/

¥0,00,00,000/

arer e Wi

4,00,00,00,000/

33,00,00,000/

£,00 00 000/

FHTR AT By

4,00,00,00,000/

33,00,00,000 /

§9,00,00 000/,

T AR Hor Rifee

9,00,00,00,000/

93,00,00,000/

59,00,00 000/

AR T BT

¥0,00,00,000/

1§,%0,00,000/

33,%40,00,000/

ESEEETU R o ol
SVEIHYE B RifRE

¥0,00,00,000/

3§,65,00,000 /

(13"1?,00,000 /

LR RGO L

R0,00,00,000/

§,50,00,000 /

13,¥0,00,000,

NTHAT

9,90,00,00,000/

¥,%%,%%,00,000/

?'CQ,O?'OO’OOO,

HEIRT JIREAEETE e “F> T @ A e RS g T A TR TR
T ©q AT gG W TR I G A el TRE g, s S

TSB! ] WTT g7 A9 |

e« Araqiid:

A=

(F) HUel THR, Fell, STdd aar Remg 7= R0 g9
(@) AT WHR, A e, ¥ R T

(¥1)  HYUIT BT, B, 7

-.J'"-
&” (/< o™

T GO WA ey, $ i |

g




ATF.R050/059 H TS wfagT

e “@_ Feaiid:

)
(¥) T REER FE Rifiee, qo Wi T
(&) TEF < gear, R wfaea |

HHE T _Freiia:

(@) FeaERe w9 e,

(@) smarstn e Sieetresr earia aiieer Qo Ry ©
(1) sifet fovar aRam, R i |

X. HFHIDT ATASHEEH! BT THHT Y Faes:

L. TPIC PR o Trages Sfgd e (voo Jar)

Wﬁﬁtmﬁzﬁwwﬁﬂwﬁzwm%mmﬁﬁévﬁm@m,
TEATAFEAT 411@%?@1%?@7@1?‘%%?@%%%@
T SASId ATaroTST St At TSuiiererT- 3, Remrermn yeam wiust
G| T AR g E wehtE ke R s s o
TEATE TRUHT | TSI Rl sraaee e Bamd TR e Ty
W ST R TEhIE RO a8 4, € 6 € ¥ % gt et
TE . 3 XY T AT TR AE H, . R, € T ] w6y
AT T 3 g g g | wviel A fi g 4 s steg
AE R¥¥.55 Frmane s fge semeT g | et Re 3ve o
ﬁauﬁ@ﬁﬁ%wnﬁ;wx:owimﬁgﬁmgﬁmw
W%XOO%.ﬁ.WWWWU@HWEﬁEW
ffce®! @ter TRafer a1 7,99 W gaRyd Ee aseaTar S5
TR AT FEROT Sy | Sgre F7e1 (JV) FSe e qar

s _
W &

\‘{:
’&/ mg\b %




NEPAL /
\ 2073 /
T L

fir SoaRT T Rifes #MA.R060/059 F AMNF WA

=9

Aot IRl AR FFat NHPC T 99 FHFq1 e THeIRIOAT BEaTe WU
T MOU s#is| NHPC &€ Inception Report T Detailed Design Review

Report UTH WgdH®! F |

¥.9.9 SATAT SRT-aaT@T JaeT T STaawTH] W :
(%) Freg wwrean sFafaie seaam:

v STTTETES TEITCIAT EqaT SFge STUET |

» foeqa sFeafaRe sreoa ava=r woat |

(@) e seaa:

o AAECTT TE GeargT AegaT qfqas ThHas! diml a9 qur drareor
AATTIHT 9T 9E Tl g oo |

% ¥00 &, Wi, JURT WS URMPWE ardreRoig e yiddgd wEied
AT |

+ Environmental Release (E-Flow) T YHRIT TgAGT AN |IETH aTaraRuia
FETIT (BES) FRIH! IRl T3y SR weat Riteed vt
95 Inception Report WTH |

(1) 7T HLAYEE :

. TOEAE ddT Yefve WOW & gqweierar (Innovative Engineering
Services) dc R mRe g

» 99 Geotechnical Investigation T @MW ¥ &7 TIFs@A Drilling
HT U qUH |

« Physical Hydraulic Modeling F TEH TR |

» fFrgae o oty Tyae sso HL TR R oade! MR wE e
WU |

. Rock Mechanical Test T8 aUHefRTT (Aimil- NS JV) aE &R 9F0= 9§

Afray widaas e |
/Q{“’ Véﬁ ! &Gé’/l;ﬁ
(}3;@\5 ;




fogm SeRT el fofies AMA.R050/0567 FY AP HasT

(g) o cgae:
TIH STHH ARH T a1 vy @ IRdE F et NHPC e T

Ig HFT e gHERR 99T gEaie 98 MOU AR NHPC 91 U9T 9Uah!
Inception ReportEﬂ%@T*f o fou wha W W |

(T) S WH gIEeel S
v HATANIRT HTET TaT JA HHAK srarengg Fafowsr @ 939 A9

ST W At e A q, R T WHHT AR e WEadh e |

+ AW & TEHIC TRUIHT a8 7. & 9, &, T &, Grareaul Mddifert =g
q03 T Y T TARERAT ST 9 A, 9, R, &, TR AU BRE
Q0% 0 AT WEA QYO YT ST YK HZHHHT |

% AR T Muck Disposal, AT a8 aa1 #fge 9ca d#F M
TEHa! AT ATEegss qredr B i a8 7. R T 3 A 9 SR
920 QU O ARREIET @i &X Yo fuler groer wE Wo TR wiE
WEHb D! |

v HATAST THITET STAAT O BT TEUH! Hedlg WBd fasrd a9 waq =i
AT AT e avqe w8 Sear afaald e gimidere afadid

iR R TFge T EREE AT WH B (Y BUS 7l 10 HUS
&Y feraeer wuaT |

(%) srAfeT qur grgiar qEeed S

o TS IUEA  ATHA WH T fagd e o sreeT uw

RECELN
« e frga witm T fga @i Beh aeiiaeer smaeT 9 T8 Energy

Lock ¥¥9= T Connection Agreement g¥9=l U] |
% Y00 &, WY, JURU TS GFudl I8 HFI T BT FHR0T g &t

fafiee =T gHERRT UFHT BEdTE WUaT |




g ST e fafies AMA.R050,059 HI AlMw gfaaed

o AT AFSFREH THT T4 e geeaea amsEm T ey 7ew
TG AW HFT T FRGRAACCT SraEdve T SWATHTe e
foifiee oier GWERi Y=HT SEaTeil UeT |

() FioT wwere) Frf:
& TEo AR, HA AT 8- 9, AT 9a9-9 TG Had-q T d1ar qar

BT W FAT Taes HRar 9340 Fiex TR et Rafn w1 sha
5o e gF = |

» IHENEERT Sty REiee gam dEE O Fuil SRS 98F  Re-
Alignment &1 TR G EWRTET 9940 YS! |

Y.} AT sewr Safaga s (YRY Har):

TeHATYieRT SrRuT STaferga STTeHT HIRH YU Fravia SgaraeT Seeme! Sie@rer
TISTIferesT /€T <. I AT SHafeud Wbl g | R0 TEAT FAI0T g 49 SAISIee
e e U996 P amR RBgd Sard gig | R R
1y 3.% B e 9ft brea! lewme T & Y)Y Al swam fga sy
g9 | oga e Seafed faga 964 6. et Yoo Faf suw
Tlthe TR TATGA SR W€ g8 AuTeen! U JERI YoITeiiar e
EL

¥.R.9 ATSHIHT BATFEITHT AT T SRIGFHSBT W

() faeqa gwreaar/ Ay seaam:

o T eeaar/3FmaRy e YiaasT I wUET g |

(@) e seag:

& STANFID] ATAERUY THE Hedidh Teqa™ HTid! Ufdae Afead T
?vnﬁ‘r I TAT ATATALT HATTIHT Y97 TG |

B e S




T ST e fofiee #14.3050/059 & Al Fias

=9

+ foga g aEAer IREWE daEcfE aRew e (IEE) @it
WERlETT UAsy sfetaRy wve Rfeea Foe e ani
qHelRTaTeE Inception Report T Site Mobilization 1 WU&T T |

() T eI

& AT SAYETE TUT YA AT & Maidren! aifit aawefarar ardha
w1 MR w=@a! gl

o fowgq ieaaity fesme SOftheraaaT T Physical Modelling T YR
giaae 9TH T Model RS 0T Wl 7 |

» LiDAR Survey ®IHT AN IR gHlc 999« T4 Data Acquisition
BT T WGP T HE BB Fldas TS AT Wl G |

(&) ST T

+ forgae T atg Toa & smE e T wEtay yae [ T Rouy
oA ST W ST |

o TE9 AN QT ATATSHIRT o FAT S 99 99§00 AU S
HEUBITHT ART S VEHD! AT THRE DT G |

(¥) Sl T qAT qEE:

% TSR] IeUee AR WH T faga e fvmm smaea g
g |

(=) sy faga @he ot wveme:

% TAETE Soafed faga eia ST wreitaren @it Suer forgd witeorar

Energy Table Lock T &1 TFI« WUHT T Geographical Information
System (GIS) edahl &1 fAld R059,03/93 AT Wi T4

Wj@'@j N)\ Nt é%

11




g S e Rifiee MA.R050/059 B AfH AT

(g) Fwir gee=d = f :

» TTdE TORHT AE T8 T BTG HaT AT TR ST BRI
FE T WD G |

» fargaewr sw o9y frex w8l oyt fex ewe oS ene A g
TTH! |

» Rgawe T e q wEiad waw e aif {En saea
IRETAT 9IHT G |

(&) o saaeuT:
> Tafrer ToeelY qur el wva,/ SeaEed T AR aT Mui e @

FAGT WEeHl 3 |

¥.3 W ST SAREGE Soagd dreEr (9303 WAL):

T UM STATTAURs SICEd ST GEIaiam WauT Sfeaiid sToRl foteeen!
ST TTSUIRTeRT T TRt @I MSUIeieT WX 8 BNl Aaiee ST
s RgEiar 63 Ret s sy T o7 qer WET @ G ad
AT FATERT HUTiel YR T T GFar feea! SN T Hia Yy .
W, Iyec AT & TH @Ag | IW AAGEIE IeIET g1 4R0R A
forga, s fga T 3R Fha v& AL @ yoo %Al sew dihe
YR ARG AT YR W ot [iffices! @lersh TR T
AT (I FERCHTHT SeT AUTeep! TR TERT JOMAAT S Wedrer TRYebT

Ex

¥.3.9 ATANHIDT BEFAGTRT Gl T FTAgvHe! Wid:

(%) ¥ gar Aega:
o GEATTAT AeTUT UldaeT giftdad! sfrad = &Bhl 3 |

Qe })@ o @2%&




forger Seaew Bl Rifies ATH,3050,/059 & qie iaaaT

(@) amaEcia sega:
o AT YHTE Hedidd FeqgqTah] &4 MR Yidasd ¥ HRgd] Fbie !
AR a9 qAT ATATERTT AATAIAT YT U] |

(M) =T reqq:

¢ AAYAE T USH+E WUT PHAR! Faiarel Rt qaweEdr gy
eafafe wrod Rifteeed T gveiar oo suaT g |
o ST TIAHT TF ART oA Gol H1dHT AT AT syaardt aiEmmas wuasT |

(&) SR e

% HTAISHD] BT Wa T HHAR a9 6 FAvED! AW Aa9qsw T
BIRE IO YU T WEH T YRS AiesT TR w§ e fFaRe
Tl ST |

(F) srgafe qen wEta:

o AR [@gT IouEd  AgAlduA WH e fgd feerw favmrar
fafd R09%,/03/93 AT TR T T T |

« orer frga witeeoT frga @it el gvetar 7 @fg R0c0/06/33
GIRECERICRIRITCIl:

& UET YR We H+uA! ! TEaliad Hid Faee g I8 AGISHE1e
Icqiied faga Sied 79 HFar T AT gary e St fofee fo
USRI WU |

% AT Yoo . Al fagd JERy AgTe g qEee geerr At
q1d ATHT |

¥.Y oo Wit @i frge s (94 . ):

Too] HifereeT G faga s (94 War) Forg Neame! gog RAIferRTan
e |, 93 HiCHM™T ety Wbl g | AT FHA T aiil AEvas

T VQJ PSS




faga Same T fafies ALA.R050/059 & AN HidagT

st qar grEetE ST e fF w1 el g o | WY Ao et
AN SregeA yer I, vy, fga ST sSqaideA T Grid Connection
Agreement TIAAHRT BT TFIA T YiohadT TSl Al 5 |

Y.¥.q ATASATR! HRT-aITH] JTeT T FIAgFHeb! W

& AN FANST AN A9 fagd W A9 U Y9 T e
T GOl A9 goq WiT G frga ST (9W ®An) B A

ATIATA U7 TRYHT |
G ST ug Y, WAl Bl VR SHAET G R Sasr SS9
w ol genfaa e wtd frga amdeer e, i T e e
AR G2G whhaEe fga efw B wwitar (PPA) TR Sue fogw
TGS Sy T T 96 faga eie AT wveiar gverd wihar swet
ietRl 7 |

€. BB TS T HUHT GebH AT F-F JAEHd Hraged!
TR e
§. TS BRYIUET HFIAT [MIHcs:

Fga Scaed wFod iee®! 9eued F0d AeE BIEgiaEl Fdl
ffeesr ¥ U9, R0&3 sHIcH [ 0Ly W8 Y AT TAAT WUHT
Rrlt | 79 FEOET e STt Sega A (s W) g
T wWH g | et 7@ HEOA Construction Power HTETHT FIRT TG
TFIEIET WG AT (9.9 W) U Herdd we TEhel |
AT AT SROTHT A T8 BT T TS BTEGIIEaR HFa g
TET T TR g T AFG@IAT BIEGIIaR ¥ [elfidg TAuHT 7+ ATavdeh
URRar SE TRTeT T WEAIEd HEIAAT YHE SReR Aftddars e

IR ETHT FAFET X e gt g | @%

l&f " ?"“'
O




ATF.R050,/059 HI aAlMe aded

g SaRw ot ffiee

§€.R.9 OIS SEgE Saaga A (Y9 Rar):

HUA T FId STORBIC e TRSBIT MYIITHT T TARNG TR THTHT
WO g TenTE EEe fgd SR T SavT 9iRd A SIS g
HEYIT T J09R AT AU forga Wit wEe woat i | S aeEaar
AEAATATS SEEresd T feqa SAMaRe SeaaT aur awmEer yWE qedid
(EIA) Sreagaabl AT Saiya 9aeaar SMEC-MWH J/V In Association
with Udaya Consultancy Nepal ¥ # ¥, 309§ ﬂT?ITéﬁ?lTWQTﬁﬁ?J\TI AT
Jh ATER RTINS TIRINIETST TEY GiaT IRAT Y5 e svalt e
Hrgrade AR iy J&aE MUH G | 99 JqaR qilie Hal $caed {360
TTETE SMeR gg | a9 HFaiie] Tayel : XA %1 TRl SUSae Serad
AT JEaE U9 IR T, SIS Aedratds A O & M s
TRifdeTe e Sawar g |

AT BRTFATDHT FaedT T FTAIFHBT Wl:

(%) Toreqa weveaar siaiatey seaa:

qAa. 05/ &R A farga gewreEansfaaiy semga @fFaw ideed

T |

(@) aaETig Fega:

+ ATAEINT FEATT YA o T ATdIaRoT FrATedale TEdhd TEahed! g |

(1) Fora sgaeam:

& ARG SQEgd A FAET TR SOEET FFaaed ggant Han
(JICA) ™ T T Y¥aTd Vertical Separation mode] S+arweraT faferer =urn
FgAhd WOREH! Fl WY I qdEd dur [HEE weAed qor
FIIAIDHIAhAIE ATAAT AT AR JICA €7 govagesT FEie yasee

T D@)\ oo L~




faga ST Tl ke ALA.R050/05 HI AfE wRagT

(&) < qar e S SRt

% S TATHRI A &=A T HRA YO AT S HIH Wb T |

v TN fammEs www GEafia g7 siE 403 W oTew 9w Wie
HLIAIRT ARG foraeue! B g @ gvat-y fulg g1 e gesremmr 7
9T TRURT G vl yre g7 e afagd! fBawer g7 Tusar |

(g)a@'qﬁuawwsﬁm:

% ATIISAAID] JeaTe AFACITA WH T faga s B smaeq Rdasa

g |
» A9 fagd wieoRT fga eftw [t reas e v e g

(%) qarR faem wardl sefee:

w Hed qgaAnt (90 fb.fir) sl Go Rrex awarsr uf gor Fafer e
ARH AT BT T HSTHD! G |

» & TgIAN (Y0 fB.f.) swwfq qo fex awargst ufF qor iy &
TELEH |

» FHferd T Wil (Ry FE), HHEE A 7E qwr st swa fw
T TSUHh & g |

§.R.] TEFYET JAEGT ATASET (9.9 FAT):

ATFGETAT STAHIT TS BUTA JIT, AR (SeatlehT e Ig TWRATTHTA]
TEE | TEGETHT R g A4 smaeeee g diffe vR.03 RrmEe s
forgd IeuET g ATAN TRUHT G | A AASAIDT T sgaedrqT qur Fafo
B IS TQST FFael HFAT AT TIART ATATH HTHHRATE T4 T
HIIHIRT TE RGN Altpadrs daras qfds! fAfd R0c0/90,0% @
1¥© Sowa Afeqard ya TRaE g |




g gameT wvd Rife AA.R050/059 F AME wRATT

« T s, R o writes aramRie sera we aere ssEhaT |

+ AT BT R dere i e gee sgwier R, R
GRE AT T, S st T o et qwstear gete T s
BIATe YEHATT ®al § |

+ ol saaeaameT @i v W |

+ TTREISH §Ah! TGB! ARG ML TIeeb! GoT T Tl URreBT
GBI TG |

€. AIgea BIEgUER S o

foga S weedt fifieesr wemwe HrodeT ST wgean HESTATIL
SR AT (0 FAT. )yl T T e U, 08 3 FR sgeen
BTEGIIER PO RIARea! €T Rify 00y S5 9y T swwar Ry | 9t
SRIET BIRGMTE HEA FAHSSTRT WWgeat-q Safega s (Y. 34
HAL) F AT WE T e SRR e e s semuay
EL

€.9.9. SFIgeET A SAELE TS AT (90§ W)

TG ETEgeR H¥Al [HeSgRT yafda ar smaemT sulel wRere) Sewr
frectrent Sgeer MRTRET T ggker TNTReE iy | g9 S
Feqa srea gicaer sffam afedRe oW IR wHE g | R eEr
ATANDT FHAl IR &R3.¥ T aem @ 7 |

TG AASD] BHET-aqTH! JGedT T ETAGFHDT W

(%) faeqa wweaar sFaaie s
« foeqa dererar/safaie demm w9 e yo g

(@) amEiT seag:
% AN STET IS o T AR HeATaee Thaa St g |

B R s Y




g ST vl fofrs AA.R050/05 F AfE SRrdeT

(1) Ry SqEE:
» o wgeeaeE (o) ot e 9% Riftees Rear ¥ .o SR,

IR T TR FHA T B, FEH G o8F Rfide T ORE o8F
foties dee @ IR ve-frimsar (Consortium) TIR TR T F‘%ﬁ?ﬂ
H GFIH HUBT |

(%) SR Ut S o

o AT Fef e e smavae 9 W ARuET e svard R0
AUAT ST Heies foraer &1 qvae R 5 |

(¥) AART T wEEiar qEd BT
v HTANHIST ICATeA AT I T forga Rresrr R wrer sweet |

o AN FHA 9E, e fgaet wRe bt @t Juer faga
WRAGTRAT  PPA Wil TF 0=l WUa! |

» IRNEEE Joaied fogaar fga e W (afEw) Reamr safug
e fag WU FaRC WigY TR TERY WEnT deqad wr
WERH G |

+ W Rozq/09/3& T Supervision Consultant a‘rﬁaﬂﬁ IR AT
{NT ¢ ?fﬁ'c’ HUHT & 9T qHeieraeeals Request For Proposal (RFP)

AN TRUSBT T IHLIRTARE gRT 99T IRYSHT Proposal TS WE@H! G |
» T R059/03/30 W Aem P wE svwla @ R CRivw

BIEGHBINGT AT HR B A FFaEy Seqa= AgH AT | e
TIHT AATAGED! HeaTgT HIeh! |
(=) Fwfor wveedt B

+ TGNl T BHA @ 6 7 SEiad waT WA S sfead =om

AT | V(J*)\ B ‘@‘2’%’




g S wet fofiee AMA.050,05 FT A waaeT

ke oy -, -
- RN
lé_.]"}'

=
% SATANHD 959 AN e g Braeft T Sear sigy o Fmin st

Sl Design and Build (D&B) &7 sa&mommar =yfer sref sd AT WERE !
g |

- gdE TIawW AENAET FHAREEds  AEUE A 99T SEiad
YASAHT AR Y BISTh! Wwama saqsn FR & ava= 9 5 |

« e Toemn g sivhfe segaEsr A e 9 (Y ReR), Access
to Powerhouse (R 90 fe¥) T yoy fex e sfee aoa T ¥ fex o,
¥ fieT SSEHT Chamber FHG  T¥q= HUE! & |

+ HY TART AR ATALAS I TATg TAT ST TASAIDT AR Hd AT
wtiferdt M &1 W g |

v ATASHE! I8 ARl Sraiid HRel (400 Hex ¥esh Aura STHiE MoU
T R B g wE Pefere Fgdye TaeH §FE e HEE Wl
EX

% SIS UgT AR W 99 ) a9l ot foet e anl % et g |
Baily Bridge no 9,%,3,¥,4,& ﬁwqﬁ grHTHe & HIgcHI Elféﬂr? Baily Bridge

e HT TP F |
o AT 9g9 A B O )9S el s AT @ e idadl g |
Baily Bridge no 9,3,3,%,%,& &I 9¥qUl YHHMEE HESHT a1 Baily Bridge

St FH R g
+ T SSaTE Rige R R qer ga e Rt g9 i

B EED G |
§.9.] geal-Y JAEgd ST (3RY.3% AAET):

STl BTegMTaY. HFal ee sl el Al SARISHT HUMC! LTl Sled
Siee! SWgecl TSRS @RS § | SNigeal e AT g -
ISR ©IHT foqa TeTeaar Heqds Heted! § | Wdaed Agar AdisH e

Foil IUET &2%.9Y NmEe g @l § | %
jﬁ; Jl)\ ‘11\9\@"
(\'\r\




e Sam B Riftiee ATA.R050/059 HI A¥e gragT

T ATASTIH HATFTATH! 9T T FAYFHBT W

© GAET FTAR T (Fe) F @i Ay R059/03/3% T Rga e
TERTAT 9T T8 SRS &aTaaae 9eiee THa Suhi Q! aid
Mt R059/08/0R T yEQHIHTT R ARETET T

% AN SIEd-Q Safaga e (93,34 #.37) H 996w Agafa
AL YA ST 3iraiae St Aha forqa wwreaar,/saaie
LTI & AT TS Final Feasibility Report WH SEHBD! F |

> IREEIRTAMThT el Teqa B WERa! § |

o TIPS T [ SRgear gEgUER  wee fice®r  wdsh
I diaHE Tagslt wrieer (e smear o= |mr 1 fafd R0z0/99/90
T TR RS T FAEHH @0 @ ol sisaiae e 9 aie
TP G |

+ PR cHEEuTESr Wit W Aed @R UH UeTee 9 geege!
WSl ¥ 9eEd A oe. Feaad &1 WEed! g |

+ W@ R0zq/0%/9% Td AU foga Wiiswmm PPA &I WM TARIK
TREH®T X Aure g it Tadolt TR e o /A IR 5 |
T TS AiedlaTe T W W TWeeT g1 e e Refie
P TS A T G |

.9 ST HUAT gIAHAr FEER HHT e

HHART GIT BITAT THH THT T B & G GITHAID! aRd HHAS

VAagd §ABl B qughdiarg GeHi TS SeRde S Ul
AEUSRATTAY STeliagd AT (¥3% L) YT 79 T8 HFa T, 063
TR T wFeb! TmaeT R 00y I Jr@ Ry T TIOAT WTHT R |

©.9.9 AT FHUIICH A FTAREI® STeaela e (Y3 A ):

TR V(u% R




faga ST v Riftes #1.4.3050/05 FI A giaag

ST hUI WEIHA TESNE B RNeEE yatdd aa mui
TETATAGE VTG ATASTT FOA FI0H] G RreemadT SpT e
T IUTEH TRad! wgm Nedre! gai ST dakad 5 | s
T AT g A ArieETe std wffE 33%% frmEe s frga geaea
g1 A TRUFT G| weee el RBrEd w frdifie wremer yoo
.. T Wiehe FEROAETARG gl foeard! ST TSR awaita
TARIEST I FAECETAC HATAH! A WHT FATAET AT FR
AT ST |

AT BTaT-agTH! e T BTATEIDT T

(%) feeqa wwwmeaan safafe geag:
GRS AEATT qAT fIeqa AT UiassT 9d Wusb! o |

(@) ArdqERiT sreag:

o AAETT JA Hedrga Yiaagasm! qFqul Hdee geoe T GigaeT ad qur
AAE AATAEAE T qEqhd! & |

v Y00 B Ml FIRVETSH! GHET Fufau= WH T8 YRiewe araramefi are
(IEE) eqa Tl Hg Tha! 5 |

4 HECFT IEARhHl FARARAS! (33 H.90.) RS ararecia qieeor
(IEE) Widee Tiea W€ ghad! o |

(1) fort e

o T YO SIUE &Y :3Y HEH T AR AEdE HRE ©.99.3% a9
DT Yelvel T G WA et e B deamedt gamd s |

« fagd @it [l Tverem gl o s Aure frga wiReorT Fee o
EEEZ Il

 Tagd Seue sgafa vy wd B e ghiaar g e Rty
AEd TAfRTar grites! URFaT SRS weren T e (E01) @7 gt

UPRAT TE WU g | N @/
) &MR\‘T\'




faga SR v fifies #1.9.3050/059 &Y 9 wfddas

(&) ST e siifoe ST Syl

v FTAGAIRT AR MaeTd g Nleaid!l g@ MSdId! T qararE
TSI HRE Q¥R o AaAdT e Fafor wegesr T qamsen @A
Pl HEAT WA T GEA reehl dpT TSR T gead
TRAMT®TS! FFAT Y00 AUAT ATGUEU I HRH! AN oA JHBIeTd
EERCZ Y

() IafaT q9r e

- TSR] ITHTEA STTAIA WH T =gq [Ferg onmr amae fegade!

g |
» g @RE =g s 9@ 9§ A9 [agd WE@rT Grid Connection

Agreement TFIH TR § |
» e farga wiveern g @i @fF wrear (ppa) FToamEET U

TRTHT 5 |
(§) qatar faerg geart »r:

v AASHAATS HTEIS e TR FIPY HAT H1E FHIa HTDT F |

v Yoy firex or sl ova Pt wrf wv s )

» ST Aegae a¥a=dl Headworks %I Physical Hydraulic Modelling T
TEEHT G |

v G SeaTd! T MR G SRy ArgHen (e eoer) Twaen
BT 9 o.M =1ar Fafr geoer 9oy g | 9T AT gERe e
T AW gEa Srearat g mETiiTET SrEaErd IRy 9 w5 S

1y 5./ wew ol wvas woat 9|
. AU ERERATE 0500 HALH! HUE! FEEmdHl agIaiid TRASH e

Fersd fvfg a9 ufdemEe g9 wTOEiEl AN e qer
AR EIAT U=t TTUeh! THIEH TETTT G¥Id WUHl & |

e.?ﬁigar“{ﬁtm@%fﬁ‘ﬂ\ | o
Sl




faga SaRT wrl e A149.2050/059 HY Afie HhiawT

foga SeareT o ffiees agaa TR w@ica @H ReEr e wee
s 310 yafea Rwgar Qien Srafega ST (90,30 Har,) T T weael
UF, R0&3 sAIow RvsEr Wi el Riktces! wumar ffy o6 w1 woa

REil

9.R.9 Regar Gien efaga smeE (90,30 Fa):

TRresge @rer Sratearga ST B YA AT Newn! diEe LA
FARAT TPl T |V AIB! Wed W& Regar @ Fwfw gy @
A e aiffe 36c.q& Fumae ek fgd St g | aed
IcU1fed feIaeT® Pooling Station FT ATEAwWaTE Hike 33 Faifdiex R0 &4
I A Wiebe TRV AR FHi W aoge Sewrsr dar@er o @
Fafedd e fagd wiweT 330 FA. B gede (gRely) aecyHAThd
T JERT JuredrT Sifeae |

ATASHIST BAT-aqTH! AT T FIAGFHST TA:

() faeqa vwreaar safaiy seaam:

» Torega stafale seaas wedter wRaeT we woa 5|

o e Aiee FegaT 99 WS g |

(@) AAEiT eI :

& AR YA Fedied AT Fqaad @i W Teb adlaRung q\a
AelihT (SEIA) SEqTTh! HAAT Wl g |

(W) ST T s YT SR
o TG ATASFTDBT AT AT I 350 JUAT SRV HEY W& QU SEIT 9
VT F |

() qatear e avaedt &
I %@T—l’ g ffd R095,/90/0% AT Connection Agreement

wmﬁal N))\ » %




forga Seame wee fofies AA.2050,/05 H ale gRATT

% TSR U WRT e .4 .. wgemnt wed wfRa 9.6 fFA
TN AT ST HE GFI HUHT F |

% fogdE M Pooling Station TFHHT HF 3.9 .. TEwoT g waET
ATAITH YT T GHATeAaT AEFaTR] BT AFas IR0 Wbl |

% R0 FHM, T Webe TAR AR TREHSH ATqE0 IRET (IEE) HRf
AfFaw T WH G |

(¥) fo sgaea:
» T 9% Tur ey Srueed guwd qERa |

.3 e e Wfes:

forga Ieares Hror [ifee®T agAa TR TEHeT e [Fear e el
fcesry yatga Rvear @i Safaga AT (8o, 30 #AT) I T HFa
U9, R0&3 FHitow Regar e gregl Megs! wammr ffd ol 71 wus!
T |

Tg HFHID] YA TcT wWehl AT 7egl [CIHCSERT Fallga gwam @ell
FAGd AT (99.% HAT,) FHFIAT UF, R0 3 FTHISH TAIAT U & |

©.3.9 YO0 @iem Stagd A (.Y JaA):

Il AT BT TSB! AN Slealleh! FhgAe MSIANIRHAT Tag | 360
FEIRT WETIh AT o WAl (A0 g A AgIeIen! SHar Bl ATEe
Wl g | A FENEER Hud afte yue.ke fmee amer g s
g | T ITME I(?le:d('llé Pooling Station &I ATETHaTE Ha 33 .M
R0 F, FT g Wb yERY wEH FEiT T aeg Seard! Farr
A, A FEedd A9 fagd qigssl IR0 %, W B TRE (gRary)
HEAECTHhT T JERI YOI SHifeeg |

B




#1.9.3050/059 HI afds AfdagT

(%) foeqa wwvTeaar/ Siaiy seaa:
» foeqa weear SERMART Seaas 1Y e |

g) aaEig Seag:

W AAET G9E Fedidd HAEFAT Yiqasd (SEIA Report) o T ATATERT

HATAIAS Tl |

) T W wEeEet B

o TSRS e T wiE w3 o Bl s i TR "ee st T
qH=T |

v ATASHIETE ATEaedd O a9 sl S sfemeer et [ geer<l goal
YPRAT S ST EET | BREd] ged! Mg v Aea Wy R
fAfd R059/08/03 AT YO GEAEHIGE AT foaeer qor S
AfemETeT w1 ge TR |

. TASITS, ATAYTD T GBI DT WRTIGR T €& HeHH! Fgdd
FTSTET GEOT S SHaEdI URTEeIE WId T UEe £ |

(%) SrgafaT o wegitar ) S
. ARSI forga @iE T wveiar Tvee |

TN AT Feiler it 33 .91 YR @gAe! Brief Environment
Studies Report (BES) Soit So@iie aoT Remg wwaradeie €eidd g =]
Wl |

(%) qataR e awad s

¢ ATENAIS] TEHHT T ATCAIDT TEAETSTHFH bl i Feeh T THK
W TEACT Bailey Bridge &1 R0 7 T |

» AT Pre-Construction 3=aitad! Camp Facilities 9T Drinking

Water Supply Scheme 0T & g ®wwr afer el |




frga same weh Rt AMF.3050/05Y F AfE wfade

() oy cgaeaTT:

+ TSR o s@a®aT (Financial Closure) 9 &¥q00 Rear sifeaw
TRUHT @l |

& T AT HRATGIAE AASEDT T T1Hd |

(g) s af R059/053 AT TR T WET VAT J&d H:

& AT Updated Cost 9T Financial Indicators % Seatee T |

+ AT Financial Closure &1 &8 9¥9d T |

> SATASHD! T SHERH! @RE H1d ¥ T |

& ITASAIRT qUAETRTAT (Supervision Consultant) FgfbaT & wva= T

» STASAIEGT Camp Facilities T Drinking Water Supply Scheme fArfor
! Aiider JAi TRAT G T |

o ATASIATRT TN SATEYhe ST ARG FEA TAT FIHTY SIMHT ARTEHR
WE T |

% ©F BB AT Hrooel GETT &7 STIedd URIGH FHa T =
TS HE T 7 |

L.y ey Ry wvot fes:

o Seured HFoe Rofiessr Qax T@iied Wwal TAEY gaaig B
RIS 93 SIS R0 AT SO ATHT & | TH FHEIA Gl AT,
foreqa gfatafe R, ardrerer T amifoe gRe weaa, e T @t
Tve, RASAT eqaedT, URANET AR et T g fadwer, S
AT T AT, TR AET T AEA ¥ 37 YATER WiIoTTeh] qHeemsT
T e JaEE YT NS AEHT G | B SRS AHIME, Foael-
Aeterer, ST T forar-wifeifires, gaemr, ardraRer T rAifoe GRem ot Sredr

fag-foE YeeE YW MREH | pr/
Q- };<f\ N

‘a'a
K%




ATF.3050,059 H aiffe gfdags

fga samRs wvE fofiees

5. HFH! GG qdT AT @9
5.0 BN ANAEEAT WIS B TS @

TG HFIAT Fa AT Ifedidd ARG AASHEE FeTTTD! ILTHT T@hTal
A o 3050/59 T FFID! Ie¥d ATARD! fagd IeaeT W§ Tab!
FRUS & ATASEEAE AT ATS {6 AUDHT G| ATANAEEH FatiTaw]
M HFIAI BT GF SGEHINT @ M- ha! F |

ATASHIDT A ATA. R050/05q HI | 3.4, R050/05 Y
g™

Bhlc Bl oA TANEGTH | 20,09,69,236.3% | 9,5,0%,95,¥99.R9
AT ATATSAT

D

fAriwT  sew Wagd | §,39,0%,29%.00 £9,¥5,39,0%0.53

] BT AT SAAEd | &,30,45,¥08,08 30,¥¥,0%,0%%.3Y

I AT ?,%0,9¥&.00 9,3%,%9,29%.00
SFAT ¥Y,50,98,¥8,¥Y R,3Y,33,&3,¥&Y,3C

5.}  HFIPT GO qUT I GHeh! [aaur:

bt affer af 050,059 W HTH! T HGRANT @H [HEAIHISGH
'(%ﬁ?g:

IEEEUI &H (%)

FHAR @9 R,R0,8¢,¥RR.99

FATTT AT G ¥,09,03,8§0.5Y
©,R 38T, IUR.RE

SFHT
O\ \ﬂ}\ (\m{,\s*‘"; 5

Q9




faga SamET Hvo ffes AF.3050/089 HI AMNE HidaqT

C.3 GUNE A9 G, SURMIT TT IRIReTged! $T.9.R050/059 &
e Tur s
(31) =nffe af R050/0zq W IFEEAIESHT WRHRE qurT GeeT Sy
TRETE R |
(F) GAEE AWAH!  dSHAT  IURUd  GuAEH, HEQH GEE qo
FAdEEde Ui doF AT €.9,000/- T TEAREr o Iufdd
FHATEEETE 8 ATUR (HTATer GaT AwaT e =1 ufey) wid oo o=
%.9,000/- %,500/- T T.K00/- Bl AL G |
(@) g Ghiorh o TEULT Webl IJTHHAHT e GEEages (ATH-=deh!
) e See W .9,000/- &Y TRGHT T I I AoHEEH
TgarfieeT I JURYd FHIANGEdE I AHGAT WUk TEarT
L& 7 9 YEH T RIS g |
(1) HFr GeEds HFHe! 98 & GXg! Aiie qieie a°r qar gie
YeT IRTSH g |
(F) OoEHeEd! YA W €.9,000/- Ui T @ g
(3) W@ PEE wfRFaw e (qaa T wEEREET 9
©.3Y,05,8% 9.6/ T P ol aur Suaffasr So® swr ama
T.4,43,000 Figd THAT €.3%,69,0% 9.6 Y& TS T

(1) T afafa:

TS AT T FAeles Geaferd o0 ITmideedl & €. 9%,33,000/-
Jow WAl @9 EET YU G |

EX FAHH! A T F9 | g WG | o gl | P T T
do% | do® W T, | dod W .

q. | = iR B qegeT Q §3,000 |- - §3,000 |-

A WFEY FAR G | SEEE Y 984,000 |- | ©Y¥000|-| 34R000]-

Ax};, D{y’\ coor 2N




A1F.R050/05q H AN gfdasT

3| e R R | s 5 4§,000|-| <Z000|-| 9qY¥000]-
¥, | =t ToAE Rk LEIRED & ¥R,000 |- - ¥3,000] -
Y. | = 9 TR_e TAEH IR | 3¥¥,000|-| 3Y0000|-| ¥ 0¥ 000]-
& | = Feaw o Wl | @A 3 9,6£9,000 |- | 984,000 |- 3,3§,000 -
D
o, | @ wae fore | yeeg L[ QLY000]-| <q000|-| RE&§000]-
REIGCT
R, | e s qAds Q §3,000|- - §3,000-
qo. | = Murer wars Rewer | sremer 3 §3,000 |- e £3,000|-
99. | = gl =g faard AT z Y §,000 |- YE 000 |-
92, | = T@ yue I |GG 3 39000|-| 35000 |- ¥2 000 | -
93. | +f aRar gaer AeqeT R 9¥000 | - = 4¥000 | -
ST 90,40,000 |- [ §,5R,000 |- | 9%,33,000 -
(@) <rEda s
. TERHSH! AW LK FA | T WA @A T
g dow
q. | = o vaE PR e, vucl, | s e ¥% ,000/-
. | o 9% die gw®, VUCL T Q £3 ,000/-
3. | #f gfew Rrep, B Nea e ] §3,000
Y, | Ffar ol wme GEee sfiwa, | 95w 9E 3 Rq ,000/-
VUCL
K. | 2l e S ATET 9 8000 /-
&. % TwaY FHT = eI E N Q 9Y,000/-
é\ SFT | 39 R,9,000/-

O :
e o ~ i




g SR o [ifes #1a.:050/059 HY AffE wRiAgT

—
=

c.Y HFOHIS] TRIIHRIEE T97 37 HHANGEAS WThM! TTHT qas Wl

TAT GerarhT THH:

G Qs qAT SHEEIT GHed! TRIUHRIgedrs Wohld e

qiffHes, ST T GAEHT @H S SHINE WHl g |

(®) wE FEER AR¥Fd ©.3Y,05,6%9.66/-(FEed A
TS T T1T 99 TS 7 Toat aadedl /) |

(@) 7 HUAEE (AR 9ied) €.3,39,69,3%5.6 3 /- (810
I FT I O THRT TR AT 99 aversd vugt Praedt
T A=) |

c.X T AoH W qAT A G
FIONET AQTHEAT T TIHT A a9 R050/059 B Fo A5
AT T G @ el [Faer e s |l §:-

.| IS ORI T | ALA.R050/05q FH 95H SR
wfaf/Suaff qT A GAaed .
. | g9 AR 9040 000/-
.| erEde |t R,39,000/-
3. | = ak/SeEmid 3R,0%,800/-
L3 ¥¥,53,§00/-
R. WW

FEAADH! AT T ILXT FAIOH g Ieaee Fvadl s Jemm qr
A T AT SATASHAGT g SR 4 grereed fafer 3 aer
A AT (Fhle HUle g STATagTh Satagd AT, fhAriehT
T TATLT ATASAT T T FUA TATAH FAATGT AT BT FeTom
AR TH T SATASTAIEEHT TR AaraRer fGear T AEF T evadied

;@L 0 m{\?@ e

0\




e ST He Rifee #1.4.3050/059 F Alffe giiae

HIEFar] HSHD! ALATT T IIGH TG AT AT TEATFREars
FraT T e T ARRAr o SeEus g | A8 weedE it
TMHIBART SZre W7ok ARAAT Thle HUe 9 TATIIH oA Targa

AT T, FH For d=re 9 T 99 T Aad w0 NHPC o=
JHARTAIAHT §EATET WU T |

AIFT ST TIad Areiies FHebTge! i fede! ggar ArTers qid
T T HFOID! Iexd €T M saaedmqd T A fFerg
AAYIHAT TR Ge 91 Tead HET TG T o7 977 Beig geagers
el e Eaaelt qur faesft svoeieed witfae 9w arhg UEer 99h
AT TG T AEATHETHT T HFIAelTs [6ehrg T aq A gere® arid
TN FFYU ST 9 ST wWhl G |

qo. UMF, Fradiey RIS HFIHHT HRITRATS TR ST

Gl IUET quT Fafaer aR AU §F §O JUEEHT WIHaE  sTaredia
wWhld THH 741 [ &ene Icaed g+ fogas! |@ua aur fafa aeme
AT A% Wl g AT qAq SRy uRfRafd St ow 9 aget
PRIAR AT GHET STADIETAT MU WEHbH! T | T qup! o
SRS ATER AIFEl AR T dQreedl [afd 9 smagad 9= T Posfiy
THERTd T T o AREr |

9. @ik Fawaor gored:

SRgH =FETaT I, fori qur syaaiies et Seargs T AR S
A AATABEHT AT I, HFIAATS graa qedrtad Aagrl/SaAs
FH T, AFARED HIAT YOI TAEHE TAST HFaael GEIETd g
e, J06R, dfde erEly qur frifr Soetca AaHEe, 00,
@ig fafHaarEed, J0s, T qur =8 QM sgaedT S, 06,
yAoT e fafzEEe], J06E, HEA Mem SRy, J0sy T gEIN gamEs

31][\,“ or & ‘ii%\




i~

\ @}.
2073

r

e

frga ST e e 2 #F.R050/059 B de HRraeT
=

AN, J06R HRFAITAT WH G W HHAE YET T SHIEAIAHT AT
FFIHIB! HHAY TREE FTEER, 003 aqeT B weReT § | o
Yl FAINH AHAT ATANTD! Tod FeAThT B! Jars! e qrewdr
I, agen T favmfia BReaR wrerdt wwe R, R0y aged gy T I
BB HHART JEme fAfgwTeed, 06y quwe wRfiee W T S,
HHHAT HANTH! TAFHR A @B G |

B! FHAH AT, TREH T SgaedqTITen! wve=y qur fedard Fafor
T TSR EHT TEesRI B, fFear T gwred T sgeeam 18 s
EINTT QTE BIH T+ GEARTT GG ARIGE, J06R HrEf-aaar wWel
T | HFEIHIBT HRD! AN ATEASA ATAR Gaae Grafas! ot/ A
STERARIEE o T =g Ml X WET v Bee WIRd o |
THATAIAA ARSI YUITEATRT THTEHTY QI FaT-adT Wbl § wa
AW T WA SEed SRfaoid THEsTd S H S qel
HeATST T T g |

FHFII! TR T SATRIfeaeTs gRET T+ HFl U7, J0§3 HI Th
&Y T B+l e Hrdfafe qur faxiin Saeiica RiRawmeed, Roul
T 3 FPER JeEdan ot @HE g | erer sader gfifie
e aqaR sgaenT Sl wEdes Fae T8 Sw e aver
B AWMHAT A= AGINEAT GRAGT I T TR T 76 TaaTar
AT fATaEen GaR T S TN B AR R gome

qoT Wbl e Aiobvg |

HERIGIIETebeh] BIATTD! TIALAT e MY g audsssare fada

TG A TRFEE THA ARSI TR T R G |

ﬁﬁmﬁluﬁﬁm JERUHT [oIgEsT GrergHl Gahd T FUIHS
\

e s N
R

—




farga S Bl RifRe A1A,R050,059 Y Afe yaaT

SUIEE HAAFST T4 IJLY Qb TSR Sr@qe aimrds gsres
TIRITAT TRIES e 5 |

19.9 wEEdET SRR

FEEN U, RO&3 FT TR &Y T HENST afiE e g B
Saeiea fafFawmEe, ROV T faFTTH 3 7T WUFT YAUH AER FHAE
Gffaare NfeT cramdEnT A T SemEaeET geeee @ HUH G-

9. = guet yaw M, s qeqET
R. = 9w disw, guEwE Teq
3. = i fores, fo, ey
¥. =l Diear o« JE GHrT dftea U greg
Y. 2 U ), SS9 FeeT
&. #fl ¥7T FAR 39, TuE e

w&mwmwwmwwmﬁ
el T TR G AT SHearg Ut HiFaaesd! G a1 aram
Tl 377 VI ar dAeue T g T ATaeuadT HATAR SHFTITIATAS
e i mear g |
99.] FFNHI W@

FEAIBT @l YT Nepal Financial Reporting Standard-NFRS ENEIES
w5 |

19.3 AR @I

ek o 3020,/59 HT AR A@THET T =T THPTITE +ft T
sirefiars: e T FrrET e gerd Wy Ao st T s e
YidaE W WEERHl § | AaRe SEMOE TRENd SraniEsers
¥.%,00,000/- (&7l TF A AA) (.3, FT aRF) THH TGE 7 |

- ¢ A




NEPAL

frge SemeT werh Rifiee ST AMA.R050,/059 B ANF WA
=

99.Y SEIQET:

A, R0G0/5 9 I HFAAIH! BaTe et S@maden T AareaerHa]
FAFAIE AT 95 A9 WoaT [, T = gie Jasierrs s
Al AraRe gwEe iy wE e s W wust g | 8 S
TEIIEHAE ©.3,30,000/-(HEEH T3 oG 99 gaR WA (|, o, &

ARH) qHT MRTH T |

99.% W@

FFHAIRT AMSE T R059,53 W HEENHI @A THBT e
TRTEI{eTh ! FEMT 97 d@OOew gfae FefE 9 9 aar
eI eTg e QAR garene s e & |

19.& SEH HaETI:
TEANTT YT BEH T GEINT GHT ARIGE J00& HT THT 90 THIH
DHFIHID] ATARD qAT AME] TED! MW UREH q°7 sqaedrgT ufg=r i
e Haae gea R guees! 9aewcanr fad geedm wifew
AT | EHT F |
13, ffe af 050,059 W HAW @ guE WA
FHFIART Jereas T FNIAEHT sqaeeT WU qHfNE el gured 19 <
I woed 9q WA suEed WwWaH g | JWEAT g <% Seadd 3,
WA T e weAeEee RS, 9 WA X BA v qd 99en
AT HeAedde SRl T8 9 S T SF 3 9, 9HE W A
AT fAgd WieTuene § S, HHA GG B, T R AR B! s,
AN TR BV, BEgecacive! Sraive UUE SWaIA~E HFaT s T
TR ST FEARITHEE (AR THed T ATTHADT ATIRAT I /3 Ub! I
ATRAITl T 9 S T ST RS, YT T ges (St e
¥ for fodiorst) X weQmeRer R afeede R 9 SRR Wl |

Qr # @%\\

ONY
C\,%\




e SR e fafies #1.9.3050/059 &I AMde gfaaaT
. | WEHH T T PR Hithad
4.

q. | = RRepaR R | weme @lRE S, @™ qur /e HAHTH
q=ATeT
R | M Ty FUR T | wuas | weatEE, o, s o ferg | Seeerd
AT BT
3. | o gudt va Flen | aues | weelEe, o Ao %A
Y. | W poAE PR | guEd | ered mevw aue g | oA
YT
w. | dReg dRa GATs | e Yo, HHATY 9 B | PEEA
A
. | = wear &t @ | TEmaem | oy fados VUCL AR
LEICEY
G, | # of v R | w@@ew | werga fes, VOCL PR
TR
o, | = suer S TuE | g, s weAed o
R, [ U yEE | yeme | e S e qor fEg | wedr
Rraw A
qo, | #ff goieT w5 RarQ | wemer | e, S, SIaela qur e | g
HATTT
9. | = 7 yOIE Aed | 9ued | 9gerd, 3 Aot BLEl
93. | =t g TaEt qeAeT  [RE, FHoll, ST adn B IEEZEIRY
AT ETHT
N ﬁ/
QQ‘
&m

ELS




fage v weE Rifie ATA,R050,05 F AfE wREAET

9R.] HFNHI GAS GHQHT HTHT FTRT T Giebl BRI

aiffe af R050,05q AT UHIE ARITHAT HTHT FRT,/ARET Feemies

WH G |

o o, FadT qr {BEE geeradT g dOr U™ HEIEiel  feds
ol el yarE REeas! aoar qUaT §e1 I3 TIAT Il AeaArerd el qiee
off QU AT T HIHID! AT AR AT TIed Wid! g |

- 9 HEATMIEIE A9 BFAAAT Fdfieed g =i T WiEre ATl T
ITh A FAT ILT THLT AHAT AeAdaaTe 2 G618 HAR WS HFIAIen]
HeTere aaferaT wfafAftes MiweT Tt g | ot T #f yurer S B g

Y I8 UH Y918 A=A AHaT TREeHT & |

93. BBl BHAN STICI:

forga 3R FFuAr [fce svaviasdl Jaedd AASMeed] Haradd T
e HESH e ded G, SHEE9d T Wiaidgd 9 2059 HER gEH

ST 39 ST HHAEE BRI Edl G |

1¥. HFHID! WTET AT T BAH:

AT ATASHAEEHT Tlee T AFSHIH FaeTe], R, I, g9 T

SYAEIIT T FLT ATEY M T¢h! HFAAID! SSTATHISH A& AT T

BTAHH WHT G |

(%) Freqd siewmd T awei gwEe RewT AEEEes! Fad geed
TEI-EHT ATBIA, HEABTA qAT Grelehleli WHITT UF sqadied AT
TN T HHTFaaT A § |

(@) TSR E®! Detail Project Report TUT STATERVl  AEqUARI HIUEH
YHIAT T T |

() ATl AN fgd e oM aHe IoaEd AgAiaTAsT [ied
AATUH HIRETET INST TS Y AoichehT YA GF g TaRome!

”Q\; (_\g\n{\a‘;‘\\(\“- v E ? \




faga ST Fvt fifes A149.3050/059 & qfE AagT
R yaRor argfdTEeET FEET et wear qu ey e
U AT TeRT § |

(¥)  ATISHIRT AT dg= AN, S @i ¥ feqa segaet S aere gty
AATAD! YHAT TFT T |

(=) forga @iw et ariiaer s et seEy g |

(§)  ATIISHTIDHT TRT ATEUF Financial Closure &1 &8 Gval T |

(&) HrOAD I wiwwr @R A qw wiRE Femeedn
geuela/aguela gweay ¢ W |

(1) TEANTT GUNEH, UREEIT qET Sahdfedl YaddAwT iRl AEeds

FADHAIGeAS dgmEl K |
() BT AW 4t SeEga ST dfes T serae qor At

w1 I TTIT |

L. Foed FfisT A
YEANTA UGS TReb! T Afdepar arer T Rrdary swesr R

T TR 9o SaeTeie T I8 9id GrEa gHels ST
TS ey |

q¢. fafe

A a9 R050,/059 HT AMe i fawer, e wiaeae T ol
fERvTEE T a9 W e T G G ST TS I8 |
HE] SYICATTTHAT TAT ST HHE FIehT AN ieAdr, NETa qoT AU I==
FEX TS ATTH ReTeedr i Hvuia! wifdeT ey o 69, 99y T earT
JUART T gy = Ao e I g |

FTHT, T HIYIh! ThAdih! Gedmaleedls AT I9 99y aaed T glied

YT U T WMevgg X HEIAAE Mk 9ednT qatsy ad weArers, S,
ST T g W ate, I A qdn Gad Wi weared, SO fregh

o o




e Soew st fifes #TA.R050/05 ] FHI AMNS Has

AR &0 oG | B (VGRS B, HET@IIeTeheh! Hriad et
Fowe Femee, Hroiel JEadas, TR e W @iy T
WA, HaeaT U I THIg TASRACET U Bides Pawdl died
grgaTe SORh eg |

Y, FHEAIAE Feae TN ATCAL TOAT ANIQE T I WA g el
HTGH TN TeNNiee W G9ied MR T A SaiReId ahele SHa Svaarg

s




faga S wv fifiee #A.3050/059 F Ae wfaag

faga SR et s
(@t U9, 0§33 TR euifue)

FFA U, R0&3 BT THT 0% HN SUEH () AR a9 fawor:

(9) iy sigwle W Rk 1ikus @
s o 050,059 W NN Stewle RS BT |

() —ha RUS! VAT qFa=e e
THET FafemT HFIAS P TAEE T DT G |

(3) FFHIB qEES HFIAL Gl foadu:
BTSN UTH I HICIh gD I (HFIGHR &bl G
() TME FEGIER FFIA S

(¥) fra sffe afar wrodiier smaem RRedeed HFadE._Suasy
TR B

ATITCIT NIEEE HEIAEATE EITGEH FE B DI JuAsy TS D!

el

(1) " o sy dhitufiere Sraie! SREaRE Mt Jux:

g IcRT FHFAl [IfeS AU SERY 9T IS HEA AUE 99

B! Araiaehl GeTad HFI!, AARTT T AHAANIITD TaAgd ATASHRE

HEY ARBT AAHAGED! [IEqq HEATTH! BT THIH AZHbD! T T bLIbl

Rreqa sreaa AfPam SO R g | Aot R e e sered aia

AT RIS T RBEdT s 0-ad T Aavds § |

i, A B T TOlREd AEHREIE S el wEReE & wud gy
WOAT 9 e Seared aun Fafast @it e 38 g dvee demn Wl
FHFIHIEE I gﬁﬁﬂaﬁwwﬁﬂh ARITET 98T A8® WH! gl

G- s
Wﬂ s




forga SaeT v Rifies ATA.R050/059 H AME FAdeT

T T AR g IRFRART Fil FaHTe a1 T8e! SRS Hasd srcded THl
wHl G |

(8) Sroiia ArEife o1 sqaaies qvery:
W B GFEfad G SOREHEE, TP Meee ¥ suadiies €Y
YTITEEET GAYT IFeFy &d SHadiie AR UfRdT 9eEr T TR B
HRAE TS AGH G | HFA U, R0E3 B qUf Ured e YA, BT qul
raf-ag W) Memee T Fams Few o INERS! saagae 9@y
JHIHT W PRSI eeaTs FFIe 9o WA@ars! A qre T8 AT 5 |
mﬁﬁmﬁwﬁmﬁmﬂmvwmalwaﬁ%
SFEIT T FHAN S AR TG @ g |
(o) frm e afar o aumes qur TEitmNeed fus fust
R | e ) B 2 A G R 12 M K 2 L ol B 2 B L1
KR 2 L B B PR L S e L L O e 2 O . KA
ATF.R050 /05 AT HFIHID] GATeleh AT URTHBIIGET HFIIHT AT @RS
T WTH G | GO SRR SR (@ WUST TRIUEee et
TEAIS AIRE AU THR T §70 Mobgta! MaMeeddr T ST
g |
(c) FFCIET TerH TrEETAr S eHEE qr (e afvmet AeeRe!
SARBIT Taredehl ARAT SUEH TRIZUH! SHHII SURRT:
TG GEFYAT P U BN GAABIAC HENS GIEAEH I G YT
call
(R) T AT TR kel ERE ! fe:
FIETHEH HFIHE ST AT Ak WRE T g |

(30) saie fa==r yurediet faeqd feer: @/
4 Sher -




faga ST s fifes ATA.R050/059 HI e Yfias

HFAI YEANTT GRTET WRige, 0%, WEwHe @RE U9, R0&3 I
HIST @RE U, 0L, e writay aur forig Saeica R,
oL, FHRd qur Nt =gaeumT wrifefy, 000 & gRurE O @RT
GEdl BT g TIGT G N HHAN] SHTCAAThbT TN BFIIenl B
TRIE FTEEe, 003 RHT G | HEAID! HHG! AT ATTLIHAT AR
qTeeh WiATdp! [Huia/ Mg Iuaffies 7o T o7 Wieite T g
Yreel BT g W g |

IR TRERIAT TIT TR fedTars e T ¥ U9, 063 THT G&Y
T ifer wrfaf T focfi Soaica fafewmeet, o6l & [fFRTH 3
A A@IIET G wWHl G | HFIe T@aaT g, Mees Sar
AT AT A@EdEd Fgfh T4 9% aiie a¥at gk AR
AT STETUET Ya e 1 T T It Waagwar sifeargs! oagear
IR T S TDI BEHIBT AT a0 YUl orel @bl W Wiebvgy
| AERIEIOETH®! HIAaas! TUHST RIBTIEAT HFIme] QERI AW [Hgh
T vEmEwee ARk emdenT g STake Qe Bl HEIT weaT
e faRivs Arhq RUST, 979 vl A, FaReEE TR T ANy
RTSIT ATARE FF=0 Juiedt ot Wbl G | AT Ha==urells e
FARSAHT AT HFIAAT T AHTHT TRNUHRIGE AL A@Iet FiAfd
PR war g |

(99) 79 a9t FHo FIATT Gha! fFaT:
IS e af R050,05q W WU F@ SUAEANT @d [AFTSHISH

@H G
HHAR G %.R,30,0%,¥%R.99
FHIAAT GIAaT 9 ®.%,09,0%,880.5Y%

S ST e Fegas w@« .5.¥5.85.69.03

,@/ TEAT ©.9,4 6,54 6€5083.8%
¥9q g;%

o\ o
AN




e ST T Riftee AMA.R050/059 F Affa W

€ RO Lk o 1 o 2 O R e 2 L L R S PR T R S B 2 B KR L
i I 12 O O M 2 21 e 2 e o A e O o B
RELCRE AN EA B ECEAE

Fifem af 050,059 W TY HFIH! IETEANTH 3 TEEAT T@IUET

Rl (e dffder § ST g9, R 99 B ¥ R S e

fACEeT gemaT wH@ 9 S 9REE) @A T dEE idat TET W]

g |

(%) <rErader amEf

FHFID ] IRERIAT TT Sarhafedrars gRfad T Heoer U9, 1053 &1 9&Y
T HFHIEDT ATides ety o foeiia Ioraried fafasmed, R0 »1 fatHam
3 FHINH 79 HFAHA TR 9eEIse @ WUHT Udh Q@aqe it

TR G |

off gher A, g qeTET
Al TweBsIT R, o o, BRI
A gl e, et fagws BE
T A GBI B W, FET T BIEE]

(@) wrEmdE ghfier o s
A.A.R050 /05§ AGIUET AT TeqeT TG HIEIeTalTs BT YT

F5F WAl G@H ©.%,39,000/- BH G |

(M < gafaer sMeraR:

HIAT U, 0&3 I TR Q&Y AT Joold WU FHIAHDT B T TH & |
TGAE HFIIH] AANE T2 GUTT HEH M, SIEH sgaedqmyT I,

W}lzi GITET HIEH T, YRR YR 0T T4, aa] T AT
‘ —\J

(\IM{\Q\




frge ST Fv ffies ATF.R050,059 &I A gidaeT

@A FRAETHT AAEUST HihIdetd! IR T T @l Ul Qe
Tt o fvIEewr Taeal qOR gues dAars e 99 T T
SgaeA ey Moy o M § |

(7)  AQEQHAT FRIfdH D

e YRk auEE wHas HeaE awy faxia e, gem
U, AT e goreh, Sifew saeedr, Brf gidaeer segfa o
qURAETETT AT AT, STEl SEITIETH] SHeargyaT B a1 A’
T AR AEROET SHETHT GEEEE Y TS AERHT G | FET U, R0&3
FT THET Q&Y T Soaid WU FAIHSGT B T4 D § |

(93) 9@, Yord GHeH, SEGK YHE, HFIe! Aeed TRy ar
2 5 2 0 1 L 10 B G2 W o R e LS ) T RIS
FIYAAE B THH TAST St Y 6l A
iRy 3 SN Ft A e ab! U |

(QY) Tu®, SRAGN IE 99 RNENEedE ke 9y 3050/069 |
b 1 R L R s R S 2 B G 2

Y. FHIHIE! TEEE G, TIE HERR AUEd, T@IETE, !
e T Pieearg enffe af R050,059 AT SREIM TRYS! T,

VI qAT GRAETHT WA RIS Rh T |
%, TS H! H W | o9 | 99N 9K | g SEid | P N T
. Yok | o WA T, | AoF WA T
q. | Reggar BT | sead % §3,000/ -| &3000/
R ﬁﬂﬁﬁqw CCEE S ¥ q,.8%,000/ Y 000/ | ],%%,000/
3 %‘ﬁgﬂ@ﬁmﬁﬂw REINED c Y §,000/ 5 000/ | 9,4%,000/

-




foga ST He fofies AMA.R050/059 B AMS YiddaT
Y | paam e EEISCD 4 ¥R,000/ -| ¥R,000/
4 ot dieg di REISED R q,2%,000/ | 3,X0,000/ | ¥, 0¥,000/
& | Fea T A | @A | R3 1,694,000/ | 9,6%,000/ | 3,3§,000/
LEISED
o, |+ @@ R S [\ | RY q,84,000/ | 9,000/ | R &&,000/
LSEIRED
q0 | =t HuT = REIREY ] §3,000/ - | &3000/
99 | =it et yerE Rea | seas ] §3,000/ -| &3000/
R &ﬁg@awﬁaﬁ qeqed G Y& 000/ Y & 000/
93 | = U0 Y9G A | Eer 3 9,000/ | 5000/ ¥%,000
Q¥ | =i aRar Tae HEAET R 1¥,000/ -| qy.000/
SFAT q040,000/ | ©,5R000/ | 9%,3R,00/

FrET TR A I SN waEE Rt SR et e dew
%.8,000 /- (FERW T TR AF) S By Rep g | queE e a7
Sreifieew AEEAtm ¥ Yo% v YEH T R g T QA qeD A
Tiife =1 gleer i soaer /et |

(F) W@ FEEH dtgaa aifie @ 050,059 WO G
qisis, ST AT G WA ©.3%,05,6% .89/~ WH |
(@) 3 wOT T TN I/E ATIR G-

< TIIITAT ©.9,000 /- (FEAT TIq FAR AA) |

o R e v W AEGE TR U/ -(HERd g qT T

HA) |

AR
TR T SATARTET I EET RHE! TAMEeHl YA el Sfeatad I




fRrga SarET o fafies AMA,R050,059 B ANF Afaaa

(@) T Rreeh, 33, Yo, B, A
(@) SIS g7 T 9T WY |
(M) TR e, R, TS, ST, T, S, e,
Fa, s, Bewe, ©F, HAR, LU, R, AT T GTEUETR A
Sfeafe a7 33 yhed 9w @H kg |
(q%) TeredEee SRfer st Wal AMivD! THH:
feReriEee SRR St Wt AT THH THIH |
(9€) T@r q¥q SRR grar @ie o et et foer:
TH q¥q FARER FEAEE A9 a8 @ AL A dolid WAEEe
%.9,99,55,06¥.3 @R RIS g |
(q0) THT QOY TARE TFg B e AUH! BRI fE:
AT FRITR qIT SHFEEH! R WU FRER qed Hear U, R0&3
Pt TE oY T ARG FTER B BIAAR TS G |
R TR ek B 1 1 O G 2 S O S B G LEK
ﬁwzﬁrﬁw
GAST T #7 U WIS |

(9%) T IS FAET:

mwﬁ%ﬁl %
Q/ / v

¥4




2 Floor, D-Block

S- DEVkOta & Company Kathmandu Business Park

Teku, Kathmandu

Chartered Accountants R +977-1-5908434
& info@sdnco.com.np
#& www.sdnco.com.np

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF VIDYUT UTPADAN COMPANY LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Vidhyut Utpadan Company Limited (herein
aftermentioned as “VUCL” or “the company”) for the year ended 31 Ashadh 2081 (15 July 2024)
which comprise each of consolidated and separate statement of financial position as at 31 Ashadh 2081
(15 July 2024), statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of cash flows

and statement of changes in equity for the year ended and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of VUCL as at Ashadh 31, 2081 (July 15, 2024), and its financial performance, changes in

equity and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards
with applicable carve-outs.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of VUCL in accordance
with the handbook of code of ethics for professional accountants issued by Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Nepal (ICAN), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

The Key Audit Matter How was the Matter Addressed in our Audit
Investment in Fixed Deposits Our audit procedure included, among other things,
The company is a hydropower development company e Assessment of the governance framework and
currently engaged in the development of hydropower controls surrounding the company’s decisions to
projects. Pending utilization of funds raised through invest in fixed deposits.

its capital, the company has invested a significant
amount, totaling NPR 2.09 billion (41.12% of total
assets in its standalone financial statements), in fixed
deposits with financial institutions.

e Obtaining confirmations from financial
institutions to verify the existence and accuracy
of fixed deposits and reconciling these balances

with the company’s records.
The income generated from these fixed deposits

represents the material source of income which
amounts to NPR 211.26 million during the reporting
period. Due to the materiality of the investment

¢ Recalculation of the interest income earned

during the period based on the terms of the fixed
deposit agreements and verified its timely
recgiptt gh bank statements.
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amount, its significant contribution to the company’s | e Assessment of the adequacy of disclosures in the

financial performance, and the inherent risks financial statements regarding the investments
associated with recognition and measurement of and related income to ensure compliance with
interest income, this matter was determined to be a applicable financial reporting standards.

key audit matter. Result of our procedure: No material exceptions

were noted.

Other Matters

We did not audit the fianancial statements of susbsidiary Nalgad Hydropower Company Ltd., whose
financial statements reflected the total assets of NPR 5.55 billion, total net profit after taxes of NPR
86.5 million and net cash flows of NPR 72 million. These financial statements has been audited by other
auditors and the report of subsidiary has been furnished to us by the management and our opinion on
the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in
respect of the subsidiary, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on other legal and regulatory
requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the
work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements/ financial information
certified by the management.

Information other than the consolidated financial statements and the auditor’s report thereon

The management is responsible for the other information presented in the VUCL’s annual report
together with these consolidated financial statements. This report is expected to be made available to
us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do

not express an audit opinion or, except as explicitly stated below, any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The management is responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS), and for such internal
control as the management determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the organization’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the management either intend to liquidate the
organization or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectiVes are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect g-material misstatement when it exists.




Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from

error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control;

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the organization’s internal control;

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the organization;

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of the managements’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the organization’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the organization to cease to continue as a going concern; and

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report as per the requirement of the Companies Act, 2063 and other regulatory requirements

Besides the matters mentioned in the preceding paragraphs, based on our audit and the information
and explanations provided to us, we also report that:

a) we have obtained information and explanations, which, to the best of our knowledge and belief,
were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company so far
as appears from our examination of such books;

c) the attached financial statement comprising of Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit
& Loss, Statement of Cash Flows, Statement of Changes in Equity are prepared in compliance with
Nepal Accounting Standards prepared under the prevailing law and such statements are in
agreement with the books of account maintained by the company;

d) to the best of our knowledge and in accordance with explanations given to us and from our
examination of the books of account of the company necessary for rpose of our audit, we

mpujgg},l%
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have not come across cases where the Board of Directors or any employees of the company have

acted contrary to the provisions of law, or committed any misappropriation or caused loss or
damage to the company.

e) to the best of our knowledge, no accounting fraud has been committed in the company.

For and on behalf of
S. Devkota & Company;
Chartered Accountants___

2. GeMPas,
SAGRS

unil Devkota, FCA
Partner,

Date: 11 December 2024
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal

UDIN: 241219CA00L9 5 sZzent



Budhana;

NCOMPANY LIMITED

andu 10, Nepal

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31st Ashad 2081 (15th July 2024)

Figures in NPR
2 e | Group fehRN S | AT A I VUICT, B o v b SV
e Note [=Asat31stAshad || As at31st Ashad  Asat31st Ashad o | WAS at 31st Ashad |
i 2081 2080} 2081 AR 2090 < T
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 4.1 3,476,603,550.60 640,092,861.68 773,763,570.83 630,592,332.62
Capital Work In Progress 42 1,013,488,548.07 3,533,103,220.81 455,943,078.80 274,933,741.45
Intangible Assets 43 238,164,024.65 238,417,066.16 237,964,610.93 238,123,410.44
Financial Assets
Investment in Subsidiaries 44.1 - - 10,000,000.00 10,000,000.00
Investment in Associates 442 1,097,986,549.18 912,855,131.38 1,097,986,549.18 912,855,131.38
Other investment in Equity Shares 443 2,550,000.00 2,550,000.00 2,550,000.00 2,550,000.00
Other Financial Assets 444 240,000.00 440,320.00 240,000.00 440,320.00
Advance Tax (net) 45 230,930,684.79 197,859,854.74 110,253,915.78 97,648,184.79
Deferred Tax Assets 4.11 1,804,187.28 1,753,831.98 770,957.75 1,843,355.00
Total Non- Current Assets 6,061,767,544.57 5,527,072,286.75 2,689,472,683.27 2,168,986,475.68
Current Assets
Other Current Assets 4.6 456,865,862.12 412,346,257.38 134,848,152.91 90,391,285.75
Inventories 4.7 766,295.46 498.407.99 766,295.46 498,407.99
Financial Assets
Investment in Fixed Deposit 445 3,775,415,102.72 4,333,776,736.52 2,090,415,102.72 2,648,776,736.52
Cash and Cash Equivalents 446 347,676,856.97 242,663,483.06 167,719,849.02 134,735,131.47
Other Financial Assets 444 - -
Total Current Assets 4,580,724,117.27 4,989,284,884.95 2,393,749,400.11 2,874,401,561.73
Total Assets 10,642,491,661.84 | | 10,516,357,171.70 5,083,222,083.38 | 5,043,388,037.41
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 4.8 4,289,800,000.00 4,289,800,000.00 4,289,800,000.00 4,289,800,000.00
Advance Towards Share Capital 49 5,952,608,792.73 5,952,608,792.73 266,000,000.00 266,000,000.00
Retained Earnings and Reserve 4.10 254,621,612.98 112,056,634.70 456,337,484.69 400,416,890.36
Non Controlling Interest -
Total Equity 10,497,030,405.71 10,354,465,427.43 5,012,137,484.69 4,956,216,890.36
Non Current Liabilities
Deferred Tax Liabilities 4.11 - -
Lease Liability 52 9,491,531.90 13,703,372.64 9,491,531.90 13,703,372.64
Financial Liabilities
Employee Benefit Liabilities 4.12.1 4,110,734.00 3,878,833.79 4,110,734.00 3,878,833.79
Trade & other Payable 4122 54,410,924.50 47,851,615.02 14,899,649.38 8,079,152.41
Total Non Current Liabilities 68,013,190.40 65,433,821.45 28,501,915.28 25,661,358.84
Current Liabilities
Lease Liability 52 4211,840.74 3,811,255.92 4,211,840.74 3,811,255.92
Financial Liabilities
Employee Benefit Liabilities 4.12.1 365,472.00 225,278.00 365,472.00 225,278.00
Trade & other Payable 4122 72,870,752.99 92,421,388.90 38,005,370.67 57,473,254.29
Total Current Liabilities 77,448,065.73 96,457,922.82 42,582,683.41 61,509,788.21
Total Liabilities 145,461,256.13 161,891,744.27 71,084,598.69 87,171,147.05
_ Total Equity and Liabilities 10,642,491,661.84 | " 10.516,357.17 176§ © 5,083.222,083.38 5,043,388,037.41

Bhi restha
Sr. Attounts Officer

Binod Kumar Bhattarai
Director

Kul Man Ghising
Director

Date: 2081.08.25
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal

Notes 1-5 form integral part of this financial statémgnts
L’)< i
s / '

Bakhat Bahadur Shahi
Chief Executive Officer

Sunil Poudel
Director

Director

% (

\‘\0\

Dr.

Suresh Acharya

Chairn;\\}ﬁ

lyan Raj Sharma
Independent Director

Manag\lr(”Eg?j
S. Devkota-& Conipariy
Chartered Accountants

This is the same financial statement
joned in qur-audit report

T

Surya Prasad Rijal
Independent Director



Budhanagaandu 10, Nepal

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the Period ended 31st Ashad 2081 (15th July 2024)

(" OMPANY LIMITED

Figures in NPR
gl Group VUCL i
UL Notes 1508081 FY 207980 FY 208081 FY 2079-80

Revenue from Operations -

Cost of Sales -

Gross Profit - - - -
Other Income 4.13 1,602,133.26 1,655,485.71 1,396,535.76 1,655,479.71
Personnel Expenses 4.14 (43,913,544.15) (39,007,343.74) (22,075,492.11) (17,888,303.89)
General Administrative Expenses 4.15 (36,193,213.41) (27,021,491.83) (18,903,474.70) (16,604,016.52)
License fee, Feasibility,

Environmental Study and other
cost of Projects 4.16 (85,478,621.03) (66,101,630.25) (84,678,621.03) (60,101,630.25)
Depreciation and amortization 4.17 (21,566,700.75) (14,891,204.64) (10,383,311.85) (12,202,669.26)

Profit from Operations (185,549,946.08)]  (145,366,184.75)|  (134,644,363.93) (105,141,140.21)
Finance Income 4.18 347,703,053.83 443,918,166.13 211,269,060.26 275,313,390.00
Gain(Loss) on equity method
accounting of associates 4.19 180,183.45 9,574,744.94 180,183.45 9,574,744 .94
Finance Cost (753,856.64) (402,507.49) (753,856.64) (402,507.49)

Profit Before Income Tax 161,579,434.56 307,724,218.83 76,051,023.14 179,344,487.24
Current Tax Expenses 420 (18,971,519.41) (44,256,964.54) (18,971,519.41) (44,256,964.54)
Deferred Tax (Expense)/Reversal 411 (73,678.68) 974,160.98 (1,072,397.25) 1,029,360.50

Net Profit/(Loss) for the year 142,534,236.47 264,441,415.27 56,007,106.48 136,116,883.20

Other comprehensive income

Items that will be reclassified to profit

or loss, net of tax - - - -

Items that will not be reclassified to

profit or loss, net of tax
Other Comprehensive Income
Gain(Loss) on equity method
accounting of associates (18,201.00) - (18,201.00) -

Total other comprehensive income (18,201.00) - (18,201.00) -

Total Comprehensive income for

the year 142,516,035.47 264,441,415.27 55,988,905.48 136,116,883.20

Earning per Equity share of Rs. 100 each
Basic Earning Per Share-Rs. 3.32 6.16 1.31 3.17
Diluted EarninJgPer Share -Rs. 3.32 6.16 1.31 3.17

Thas is the same ﬁnanmal statement
@ : meptio: ur/aydtt regon

% \,Oiﬂﬂﬁ ,

Notes 1-5 form integral part of this ﬁnanclji?@
Bhl@::n'estha

-
Sures|1,4rya

akhaf Bahadur Shahi unil Poudel
Sr. Accounts Officer Chief Executive Officer Director Chairman
’\(\Uy S. Devkota & Company
Chartered Accountants
B (S0
- /Lm 1/\. b
Binod Kumar Bhattarai  Kul Man Ghising ArjotYKumar Gautam Dr. Kalyan Raj Sharma Surya Prasad Rua1/

Director

Date: 2081.08.25
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal

Director Director Independent Director Independent Director



CONSOLIDATED STﬂNT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Period ended 3 Mad 2081 (15th July 2024)

Figures in NPR
T BE ey - i Group = ey T | S GCLA o
STy ! Al 0 FY 2080-81 o | " FY 20’!9-80 ﬁb‘ %FY 2080-81 ‘H’h ‘ah?r‘F\’ 20‘79-80
C \Sll FL ()\\/S l'R()\l OPLR AT l\(‘ \( ll\ llll 's
Profit/(loss) for the Year before income tax 161,579,434.56 307,724,218.83 76,051,023.14 179,344,487.24
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and Amortization 21,566,700.75 14,891,204.64 10,383,311.85 12,202,669.26
Adjustment to reserve -
Interest Income Received (347,703,053.83)]  (275,313,390.00) (211,269,060.26) (275,313,390.00)
Working capital adjustments
(Increase)/ decrease in Other financial assets 200,320.00 8,540,567.78 200,320.00 7,800,000.00
(Increase)/ decrease in other current assets (44,519,604.74) 125,161,718.09 (44,456,867.16) 221,645,362.87
(Increase)/ decrease in Inventories (267,887.47) 177,312.37 (267,887.47) 177,312.37
Increase/ (decrease) in employee liabilities 372,094.21 1,387,595.93 372,094.21 1,387,595.93
Increase/ (decrease) in lease liabilities - (2,475,557.58) - -
Increase/ (decrease) in Trade and other payables (12,991,326.43) 6,723,689.83 (12,647,386.65) 7,323,297.11
Cash generated from operations (221,763,322.95) 186,817,359.89 (181,634,452.34) 154,567,334.79
Bonus Paid - -
Income Tax paid (52,080,139.11) (41,248,066.28), (31,615,040.03) (41,248,066.28)
Net cash flows from operating activities (273,843,462.06) 145,569,293.61 (213,249,492.37) 113,319,268.49
CASH FLOWS FROM/ (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment (156,727,933.63)]  (240,808,840.69) (153,419,268.61) (239,739,914.69)
Disposal of assets 23,561.19 - 23,561.19 -
Purchase of Intangible Assets - (237,807,518.90) - (237,807,518.90)
Capital Work in Progress (181,512,039.85) 30,320,285.67 (181,009,337.35) 64,362,029.22
Investment in Fixed Deposit 558,361,633.80 (43,072,590.21) 558,361,633.80 (43,072,590.21)
Investment in Subsidiary - 580,000,000.00 - 580,000,000.00
Investment in Associates (185,180,183.45)]  (640,254,744.92) (185,180,183.45) (640,254,744.92)
Investment in Other Equity Shares - - - -
Interest Received 347,703,053.83 275,313,390.00 211,269,060.26 275,313,390.00
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities 382,668,091.89 (276,310,019.05) 250,045,465.84 (241,199,349.50)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds towards share capital - 234,000,000.00 - 234,000,000.00
Changes in lease liabilities (3,811,255.92) (3,811,255.92) (2,475,557.58)
Proceeds towards advance share capital - (234,000,000.00) - (234,000,000.00)
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities (3,811,255.92) - (3,811,255.92) (2,475,557.58)
INCREASE /(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 105,013,373.91 (130,740,725.44) 32,984,717.55 (130,355,638.59)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, B g of period 242,663,483.06 373,404,208.51 134,735,131.47 265,090,770.06
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, End of Period o~ 347,676,856.97 242,663,483.06 167,719,849.02 134,735,131.47

¢ -
Bhi Sh,est{,a aknhat Bahadur Shahi Sunil Poudel Suresh Ac'ewa/
Sr. Accounts Officer Chief Executive Officer Director Chairman

ik

Managlng Partner T
S. Devkota & Company
Chartered Accountants

Orag™”

Dr. Kalyan Raj Sharma
Independent Director

;lr'y’:‘;r;(s!ldﬁ Rtjaf/

Independent Director

h -
fjunKumar Gautam

Binod Kumar Bhattarai .
Director

Director

Date: 2081.08.25
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal

Kul Man Ghising
Director
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1.1.

VIDHYUT UTPADﬁOMPANY LIMITED
_Buddhanagar, Kathmandu 10, Nepal 7
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Period ended 31st Ashad 2081 (15th July 2024)

General Information of Company

Vidhyut Utpandan Company Limited (VUCL) (hereinafter referred to as "Group") is a public limited
company incorporated under Companies Act, 2063 on 2073.08.05. The main objective of the
Company is to engage in survey, development, electricity generation, operation and management of
hydropower projects intended to be developed by Nepal Government. The Company also plans to
develop other hydropower projects. The Company was registered on 2073/08/05 in Company's
Registrar Office as Public limited company and has obtained registration number of 158652/073/074.

It is registered in Inland Revenue Office with PAN of 604353302 on 2073/09/12. The company has
registered office at Buddhanagar, Kathmandu, Nepal.

The Company is promoted by the different Ministries of the Government of Nepal and public sector
undertakings.

Subsidiary

The Group holds the 100% shares of Nalgad Hydropower Company Ltd. Nalgad Hydropower
Company Ltd was incorporated on 2074.2.14. The objective of the company is to engage in
development, electricity generation, operation and management of hydropower projects.'

The government of Nepal has provided advance against the share capital aggregating NPR
5,686,608,792 to Nalgad Hydropower Company Ltd. which if converted to share capital can dilute the
holding of the group in such a way that Nalgad Hydropower Company Ltd. will no longer be the
subsidiary of the group.

However, as of the date of financial statements, the group holds 100% of voting rights and has 100%

representation in the board of directors. Accordingly, the company's statement of affairs has been
consolidated in these financial statements.

Responsibility of Financial Statement

Management and those charged with governance are responsible for preparation and presentation of
Financial Statements as per the provisions of Company Act, 2063 and other relevant regulations.

The responsibility for preparation of following components of the Financial Statements is inherent
with the management.

a. Statement of Financial Position showing financial position of the company.

b. Statement of Profit or Loss and other comprehensive income showing financial performance of the
company.

c. Statement of Cash Flow for analysing the generation and usage of cash and cash equivalents.

d. Statement of Changes in Equity for analyzing the movement of amount on different components of
equity.

e. Notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.
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_____ Buddhanaga®@@hmandu 10, Nepal
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

For the Period ended 31st Ashad 2081 (15th July 2024)

Date of Authorization for Issue

The accompaying financial statements have been approved for publication by the Board of Directors
of the Vidhyut Utpadan Company Limited in its meeting held on 2081/08/25. The Board of Directors
acknowledges the responsibility for the preparation of financial statements.

Reporting Period
The Company follows the Nepalese financial year based on the Nepalese calendar.

Particulars Period
Comparative Reporting Period 1 Shrawan 2079 - 31st Ashad 2080
Reporting Period 1 Shrawan 2080 - 31st Ashad 2081

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements are prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting policies
are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements. Current and non-
current segregation is considered for preparation of financial statements.

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements are prepared in line with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) as
issued by Accounting Standards Board Nepal and pronounced by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Nepal (ICAN). The financial statement have also been prepared in accordance with
the relevant presentation requirements of the Companies Act, 2063 of Nepal.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and judgments. It also requires management
to exercise judgment in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. The Company
makes certain estimates and assumptions regarding the future events. Estimates and judgments are
continuously evaluated based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management believes that
the estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future
results could differ from these estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized
prospectively in current and future periods.

The most significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting
policies that ha ost significant effect in the Financial Statements are as follows:




i)

ii)

jii)

VIDHYUT UTPAD# OMPANY LIMITED
Buddhanagar, imandu 10, Nepal
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Period ended 31st Ashad 2081 (15th July 2024)

Useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment

Management reviews the useful life and residual values of property, plant and equipment at least
once a year. Such life is dependent upon an assessment of both the technical life of the assets and
also their likely economic life, based on various internal and external factors including relative

efficiency and operating costs. Accordingly, depreciable lives are reviewed annually using the best
information available to the Management.

Impairment of property plant and equipment

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its property,
plant and equipment to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Recoverable amount is the higher of
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Value in use is usually determined on the basis of
discounted estimated future cash flows. This involves management estimates on anticipated
commodity prices, market demand and supply, economic and regulatory environment, discount
rates and other factors. Any subsequent changes to cash flow due to changes in the above
mentioned factors could impact the carrying value of assets.

Contingencies
In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims
against the Company. Potential liabilities that are possible but not probable of crystallizing or are

very difficult to quantify reliably are treated as contingent liabilities. Such liabilities are disclosed
in the notes but are not recognised.

iv) Fair value measurements

v)

Some of the Company’s assets are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The
management determines the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurements. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available, else moves to level 2 and level 3 inputs. The

management works closely with the qualified external values to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model.

Recognition of deferred tax assets

Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters
available when the financial statements are prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions

about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising
beyond the coptrpl of the Company.




3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

VIDHYUT UTPADA MPANY LIMITED
Buddhanagar mandu 10, Nepal
Notes to the Consoli%d Financial Statements
For the Period ended 31st Ashad 2081 (15th July 2024)

Discounting

Discounting is applied where assets and liabilities are non-current and the impact of the discounting is
material.

Limitation of NFRS Implementation

Wherever the information is not adequately available and the cost to develop the same would exceed

the benefit derived, such exception to NFRS implementation is noted and disclosed in respective
sections, if any.

Functional and presentation currency

The Company operate within the jurisdiction of Nepal. Nepalese Rupees (NPR.) is the presentation

and functional currency of the Company. Accordingly, the Financial Statements are prepared and
presented in Nepalese Rupees.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in statement of financial position based on current/non-
current classification. Based on the nature of service/product and the time between acquisition of
assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained

its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current/non-current classification of assets and
liabilities.

The Company classifies an asset as current when it is:

- Expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
- Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

The Company classifies a liability as current when:

* It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

* It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

* It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

* There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax as and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.




VIDHYUT UTP OMPANY LIMITED
) _ Buddhanagaamandu 10, Nepal v
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As at 31st Ashad 2081 (15th July 2024)

4.1 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

Recognition and Measurement:

Land is carried at historical cost and is not depreciated. All other items of PPE are measured at cost. Cost
includes purchase value and expenditure that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets.

Subsequently, PPE is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the company and the

cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other costs are charged to statement of profit and loss during
the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment costing up to Rs. 25,000.00 are expensed off in the year of acquisition.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value:

Depreciation is calculated using the Straight Line Method to allocate their cost, net of their residual value,
over their estimated useful life, from the date the assets are ready for its intended use. Leasehold assets are
amortized over the primary period of lease. When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have

different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and
equipment.

The residual values, useful lives and the depreciation methods of assets are reviewed at least annually, and if
expectations differ from previous estimates, changes are made in the estimates and are accounted for as a
change in accounting estimates in accordance with NAS 8.

Management's estimate of the economic useful lives and salvage value are as follows:

S.N. Assets Type Life (in Year) Salvage (in %)

1 Computers 5 5
2 Furniture and Fixtures 10 5
3 Office Equipment 7 5
4 Vehicles 8 5
5 Machinery and Electrical Plant 15 5
6 Electrical Structure and Transmission Line Lease period

7 Public Structure Lease period

8 Other Assets 5 5

The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements upon sale or

disposition of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss
within other gains/ (losses).




ar, Kathmandu 10, Nepal
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As at 31st Ashad 2081 (15th July 2024)

Impairment

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual

cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest component of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.
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VIDHYUT UTPAD A

Buddhanagar, Mandu_lo, Nepal
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

As at 31st Ashad 2081 (15th July 2024)
4.2 Capital Work in Progress

) MPANY LIMITED

Assets in the course of construction are capitalized in the assets under capital work in progress account (CWIP). The
Company have not yet obtained the "Generation License" and is yet to enter into "Power Purchase Agreement", thus is
not under construction phase till reporting date and thus the work in progress is not subject to application of IFRIC 12.
Upon obtaining generation license, hydropower assets shall be accounted as per requirement of IFRIC 12. Cost
incurred till detailed feasibility study of the projects are included in statement of profit or loss. Cost incurred for the
project after establishment of the technical and financial feasibility, in the form of undergoing technical design, pre-
construction activities etc. are recognized as Capital Work in Progress (CWIP) and are carried at cost, less
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Detail Engineering Study related cost has been capitalised in intangible assets

after acceptance of final detail engineering reports of projects.

Group

Particulars 31.03.2081

_ During the Period

31.03.2080

The total cost comprise the cost of following projects:
Phukot Karnali HE Project

309,322,322.14 117,832,417.67 191,489,904.47
Kimathanka HE Project 146,620,756.66 63,176,919.68 83,443,836.98
Nalsinghgad HE Project 557,545,469.27 (2,700,624,010.09)  3,258,169,479.36
Total 1,013,488,548.07  (2,519,614,672.74)  3,533,103,220.81

¥ VUCL %

Particulars i 31.03.2081 During the Period  31.03.2080
The total cost comprise the cost of following projects:
Phukot Karnali HE Project 309,322,322.14 117,832,417.67 191,489,904.47
Kimathanka HE Project 146,620,756.66 63,176,919.68 83,443,836.98
Total 455,943,078.80 181,009,337.35 274,933,741.45

The detailed feasibility study of Phukot Karnali HE Project and Kimathanka HE Project was completed in previous
year as well as the updated feasibility report of Mugu Karnali Storage Projects in process to obtain and the technical
designs and other pre-construction works have been started. The costs incurred that are presented under CWIP are as

follows:

Particulars 31.03.2081 During the Period 31.03.2080
Phukot Karnali HE Project

Personnel Expenses 29,044,035.68 8,556,722.00 20,487,313.68
Detail Engineering Study 1,850,303.00 1,850,303.00 -
Test Tunnel 84,507,447.37 19,271,132.33 65,236,315.04
Environment Impact Study 11,954,947.04 11,954,947.04
Physical Modeling 30,858,551.43 12,427,252.17 18,431,299.26
Administrative Exp 11,874,681.33 2,396,044.83 9,478,636.50
Land Acquisition 6,010,648.32 1,102,609.45 4,908,038.87
In Situ Rock Mechanical Test 55,118,649.38 55,000,000.00 118,649.38
Geology and Hydrology study 21,272,051.70 4,796,762.30 16,475,289.40
Camp Facilities 56,287,116.89 12,391,111.59 43,896,005.30
Project Expenses (Others) 573,410.00 70,000.00 503,410.00
Total 309,351,842.14 117,861,937.67 191,489,904.47
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VIDHYUT UTPAD,
Buddhanagar,

andu 10, Nepal

MPANY LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As at 31st Ashad 2081 (15th July 2024)

Particulars 31.03.2081 During the Period 31.03.2080
Kimathanka HE Project
Personnel Expenses 17,897,034.31 5,855,751.90 12,041,282.41

Detail Engineering Study 7,491,274.28 7,491,274.28 -
Environment Impact Study 4,426,033.65 - 4,426,033.65
Compound wall (Fencing) Construction 4,497,967.44 - 4,497,967.44
Physical Modeling 5,294,911.06 - 5,294,911.06
License fee 400,000.00 400,000.00 -
Test Tunnel 100,579,110.68 46,802,020.01 53,777,090.67
Administrative Exp/Others 3,143,275.20 1,048,007.21 2,095,267.99
Land Acquisition 2,891,150.04 1,579,866.28 1,311,283.76
Total 146,620,756.66 63,176,919.68 83,443,836.98
Nalsinghgad Project

Public Construction - Access Road Cost 180,473,181.26 - 180,473,181.26
Public Construction - Access Road Cost Bikash samati 76,621,469.00 - 76,621,469.00
Land Aquisition Cost - (2,488,827,312.50)  2,488,827,312.50
Land Aquisition Cost Bikash samati - (115,975,445.00) 115,975,445.00
Site Building Construction Cost - (44,405,067.65) 44,405,067.65
Site Building Construction Cost Bikash samati - (30,559,629.00) 30,559,629.00
House and Land Acquisition Others 576,538.00 - 576,538.00
Compound And Other Structural Construction - (21,352,478.44) 21,352,478.44
Other Capital Research And Consultancy 299,874,281.01 495,922.50 299,378,358.51
Total 557,545,469.27  (2,700,624,010.09)  3,258,169,479.36

Impairment

At each reporting period, Company performs test as to whether the subsequent information or other events have led to
the valuation of CWIP in such amount that it exceeds its recoverable amount or its apparent that CWIP will not longer
be completed, then impairment test is done and any loss arising is booked in profit or loss.

4.3 Intangible Assets
Recognition and Measurement:
Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation

and accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, except software.

Certain computer software costs are capitalized and recognised as intangible assets based on materiality, accounting
prudence and significant benefits expected to flow there from for a period longer than one year. The software generally
have one time installation/acquisition charge and are run on annual renewal basis. On such scenario, a fixed period is
determined to the purpose of Amortisation of software.

Detail Engineering Study report cost of Phukot Karnali Hydro Electric Project and Kimathanka Hydro Electric Project
has been capitalised under intangible assets. These costs will remain as intangible assets pending obtaining of
generation license. After receipt of generation license, these costs will be accounted separately in line with IFRIC 12.

Amortisation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value:
Amortisation is recognized on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives, without nil residual value. The

estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Buddhanag

wthmandu 10, Nepal

L3 COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

As at 31st Ashad 2081 (15th July 2024)

Assets Type

Estimated Useful Life

Software

4 to 8 years

Study costs are not amortized until these costs become part of hydropower assets in future.

Impairment

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. Loss is accounted in profit or loss.
Impairmet of Project Works cost is done only on the existence of ground of inability to obtain generation license of the

projects.

Details of Intangible Assets

Figures in NPR
- Group S ik
Particulars T Software " Project Cost ~ Total
Balance as at 1 Shrawan 2080 1,494,310.00 237,779,268.90 239,273,578.90
Additions - Externally Acquired -
Feasibility Report/License Fee -
Phukot Karnlai Hydro Electric Project -
Kimathanka Arun Hydro Electric Project -
Other acquisitions internally generated -
Balance as at 31st Ashad 2081 1,494,310.00 237,779,268.90 239,273,578.90
Amortisation and impairment losses
Balance as at 1 Shrawan 2080 856,512.74 856,512.74
Charge for the year 253,041.51 253,041.51
Impairment losses -
Balance as at 31st Ashad 2081 1,109,554.25 - 1,109,554.25
Net Book Value
At 1st Shrawan 2080 637,797.26 238,417,066.16
Balance as at 31st Ashad 2081 384,755.75 237,779,268.90 238,164,024.65
YUCL B ] .
Particulars & i Software Project Cost Total
Balance as at 1 Shrawan 2080 763,200.00 237,779,268.90 238,542,468.90
Additions - Externally Acquired -
Feasibility Report/License Fee -
Phukot Karnlai Hydro Electric Project -
Kimathanka Arun Hydro Electric Project -
Other acquisitions internally generated -
Balance as at 31st Ashad 2081 763,200.00 237,779,268.90 238,542,468.90
Amortisation and impairment losses
Balance as at 1 Shrawan 2080 419,058.46 419,058.46
Charge for the year 158,799.51 158,799.51
Impairment losses -
Balance as at 31st Ashad 2081 577,857.97 - 577,857.97
Net Book Value
At 1st Shrawan 2080 344,141.54 238,123,410.44
Balance as at 31st Ashad 2081 185,342.03 237,779,268.90 237,964,610.93
7
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VIDHYUT UTPABANSC OMPANY LIMITED
Buddhanaganﬁ@mandu 10, Nepal
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As at 31st Ashad 2081 (15th July 2024)

4.4 Financial Assets

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity

instrument of another entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are initially measured at transaction cost and where such values are different from the fair value, at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets (other than
financial assets at fair value through profit and loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial
recognition of financial asset. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss are immediately recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

A Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating
interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future
cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period.
Income/ expense arising on financial instruments after applying an effective interest rate is recognised in Statement of
Profit and Loss and is included in the “Other finance income” or “Other finance cost” line item.

For financial assets maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximates
amortized cost due to the shorter maturity of these instruments.

B Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets
i. Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the

financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

ii. Financial assets measured at fair value

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held
within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows or to sell these
financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The Company in respect of equity investments
(other than in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures) which are not held for trading has made an irrevocable
election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value of such equity instruments.

Such an election is made by the Company on an instrument by instrument basis at the time of initial recognition of
such equity investments.

Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income is carried at fair
value through the statement of profit and loss.

C Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, measured at amortized cost, are assessed at each Reporting date to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets measured at
amortized cost has incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset's original EIR. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the Statement of

Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.
\}X ‘@( ﬁ}/ ’
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VIDHYUT UTPAD# DMPANY LIMITED
Buddhanagar, Regffi#andu 10, Nepal
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As at 31st Ashad 2081 (15th July 2024)

De-recognition of financial assets
The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition under NFRS 9.
If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the assets and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay.
If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amounts measured at the date
of de-recognition and the consideration received is recognised in statement of profit or loss.

Fair Value Measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, investment in equity instruments at fair value at each balance
sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly

transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

i) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
ii) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are

available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within

the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Offsetting of Financial Assets

Financial assets are offset with financial liabilities and the net amount is reported in the financial statements if there is
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to
realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

During the financia)
disclose in note 4.5

ar, company have not offsetted financial assets and financial liabilities except advance tax
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VIDHYUT UTPADﬁ’IPANY LIMITED
) - VBuddhanagqr, 7 andu 10, Nepal
(T Notes tolthe Consolidated Financial Statements S
As at 31st Ashad 2081 (15th July 2024)

4.4.1 Investment in Subsidiaries

When the Company’s extent of investment in the invested companies allows it to have effective control over the governance and functions, the
investment is treated as investment in subsidiaries.

Figures in NPR
‘ T RO ok DR vt st GUAVUICT, 20 R
vi‘)etails gif‘l'nvmment‘ in subsidiaries - : K , —— T [ L0205
Nalgad Hydropower Company Limited - - 10,000,000.00 10,000,000.00
Total - - 10,000,000.00 10,000,000.00
Details of subsidiaries with shareholding patterns are as follows:-

- . . Date of acquisition of  Ownership as on
N f the Subsid
ame of the Subsidiar, Date of Incorporation Business Address shares Ashad 31, 2081

Nalgad Hydropower Company Ltd. 2074.02.14 Baneswor, Kathmandu 2074.03.19 100%

Subsidiary is non-listed and is in the pre-construction phases of operation till reporting date. Accordingly, company has estimated that the cost of such
subsidiaries resembles the fair value at the reporting date.

As per the provisions of Memorandum of Association of Nalgad Hydropower Company Limited, there is an arrangement to issue shares in the
following proportion. This arrangement will come into effect once the subsidiaries make public issue of shares.

Group Shareholder Percentage(%)
A Vidhyut Utpadan Company Ltd (the Company) 75
General Public 13
B Locals affected by the project 10
Deprived/Disadvantaged Families 2
Total 100

4.4.2 Investment in Associates

If the investment of the company or other matters provide significant influence over the operating and financial decision making of the company, such
investment is treated as associate.

Associates are valued using equity method.
Company has Board representation in the following companies and accordingly has significant influence over such companies, hence are treated as

associates.
Figures in NPR
a4 ). ‘,,““ I B YD F T"?;}.ur it St o 5 Gmup b f AR ! v_:':%ji\":; 51 »;" WCL 3 k,‘ VR
ROl S s e tin associat e I | wuaw 103200 Lisms [ aera1.03.20%0 0 | il 31.03.2081 31032080
Jagdulla Hydropower Company Ltd. 717,357,809.88 617,049,247.19 717,357,809.88 617,049,247.19
Simbuwa Remit Hydro Limited 49,074,164.76 19,221,547.16 49,074,164.76 19,221,547.16
Betan Kamnali Sanchaya Karta Hydro Power Company 229,873,951.88 234,009,039.21 229,873,951.88 234,009,039.21
NEA Engineering Company Limited 46,451,371.71 41,117,140.61 46,451,371.71 41,117,140.61
Remit Hydro Limited 55,229,250.95 1,458,157.21 55,229,250.95 1,458,157.21
Total 1,097,986,549.18 912,855,131.38 1,097,986,549.18 912,855,131.38

P aiieE 5k L P L S N T e
Ownership % and Cost of i 31.03.208 1 (AR
‘associatesare; ng Ameunt = (Cost 0
. Jagdulla Hydropower Company Ltd. 26.00% 717,357,809.88 709,180,000.00 617,049,247.19 609,180,000.00
_ Simbuwa Remit Hydro Limited 21.00% 49,074,164.76 50,000,000.00 19,221,547.16 20,000,000.00
‘;1 Betan Karnali Sanchaya Karta Hydro
// Power Company Ltd 10.00% 229,873,951.88 250,000,000.00 234,009,039.21 250,000,000.00
/ NEA Engineering Company Limited 17.00% 46,451,371.71 25,500,000.00 41,117,140.61 25,500,000.00
Remit Hydro Limited  ~ 7.47% 55,229,250.95 56,500,000.00 1,458,157.21 1,500,000.00

Total { 1,097,986,549.18 1,091,180,000.00 912,855,131.38 906,180,000.00
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4.4.3 Other investment in Equity Shares

VIDHYUT UTPA [ sOMPANY LIMITED
Buddhanagarmandu 10, Nepal

'Notes €0 the Consolidated Financial Statements 1

As at 31st Ashad 2081 (15th July 2024)

Investment made on strategic purpose where company neither has significant influence or control, are included under other investment in equity shares.
The shares are valued at fair value through OCIL.

The company under such category are non-listed and without active commercial operation. Accordingly, company has estimated that the cost of such
equity resembles the fair value at the reporting date.

i ] i Figures in NPR
| Details of other invesiment in equity shares ; ‘tlvs‘l.as.'zqsl ”(i'rfp-:;s.&%ﬁ e VU;CL 0 i
Nepal Power Trading company Limited 2,550,000.00 2,550,000.00 2,550,000.00 2,550,000.00
Total 2,550,000.00 2,550,000.00 2,550,000.00 2,550,000j00
Ownership % and Cost of investmentinE In% { = 31032081 = [ 131032080 0 |
Nepal Power Trading company Limited 17.00% 2,550,000.00 2,550,000.00 2,550,000.00 2,550,000.00
Total 2,550,000j00 2,550,000.00 2,550,000.00 2,550,000:00

4.4.4 Other Financial Assets

Items where company has right to receive cash or other financial assets and that have not been separately presented under specific heading of financial

assets are included in other financial assets.

Figures in NPR
! s 3 s ATy : Grou Sipnaea S 2 PEEVUCES ST
oot i anclal s et T B B K R 31032081 | 310330800
Sanjha Sewa (Sahakari Sastha) Ltd. 200,000.00 200,000.00 200,000.00 200,000.00
Nepal Telecom 40,000.00 40,320.00 40,000.00 40,320.00
Department of Electricity
Development (DoED) - 200,000.00 200,000.00
Total 240,000.00 440,320.00 240,000.00 440,320.00

4.4.5 Investment in Fixed Deposit

Investment in fixed deposits are short term investment normally with maturity less than or equal to one year. Fixed deposit are measured at amortized
Company has held various fixed deposits in various banks, the details of which are presented in the table below:

=3
<
L3}
oy
A3

Figures in NPR

Bt s R e % i St Gron it il e N | B TR A MBI VIDC L sy A

B Detatsplinvestmentinifixed deposh 31032081 | T30 T 31032081 | 3L03.2080

Nepal SBI Bank Ltd-FD 540,000,000.00 120,000,000.00 540,000,000.00 80,000,000.00

Machhapuchhre Bank Ltd -FD 120,000,000.00 80,000,000.00

NMB Bank Ltd -FD - 130,000,000.00 80,000,000.00
Sanima bank Ltd -FD 100,000,000.00 125,600,000.00 100,000,000.00 -

Nepal Bank Ltd - FD 340,000,000.00 220,000,000.00

Rastriya Banijya Bank Ltd -FD 90,000,000.00 90,000,000.00

NIC Asia Bank Ltd 1,420,000,000.00 590,000,000.00 1,000,000,000.00 550,000,000.00

Prabhu Bank - FD 625,600,000.00 50,000,000.00 50,000,000.00

Prime Commercial Bank -FD 340,000,000.00 90,000,000.00

Laxmi Sunrise Bank Ltd - FD 250,000,000.00 550,000,000.00 200,000,000.00 550,000,000.00

Citizen Bank International- FD - 90,000,000.00 90,000,000.00

Agricultural Development Bank -FD - 160,000,000.00 160,000,000.00

Kumari Bank Ltd -FD 539,400,000.00 829,400,000.00 150,000,000.00 340,000,000.00

Nabil Bank Ltd -FD 250,000,000.00 180,000,000.00 100,000,000.00 80,000,000.00

i Siddhartha Bank Ltd -FD 130,000,000.00 80,000,000.00

\\\\ Global IME Bank Ltd - 110,000,000.00 60,000,000.00

. ’A\\\ Himalayan Bank Ltd (Civil Bank) 50,000,000.00 10,000,000.00

£ | Laxmi Sunrise Bank Ltd 20,000,000.00 20,000,000.00

' Nepal Investment Mega Bank Ltd 50,000,000.00 300,000,000.00 10,000,000.00

"/ Sub-Total 3,775,000,000.00 4,325,000,000.00 2,090,000,000.00 2,640,000,000.00

Add: Interest Receivab igg EIR 415,102.72 8,776,736.52 415,102.72 8,776,736.52

Total 3,775,415,102.72 4,333,776,736.52 2,090,415,102.72 2,648,776,736.52

X
/
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OMPANY LIMITED

Buddhanag andu 10, Nepal

4.4.6 Cash and Cash Equivalents

¥ Notes(tothe Conso¥8¥d Financial Statementall

As at 31st Ashad 2081 (15th July 2024)

Cash and short-term deposits in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with a maturity of three
months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, in banks and demand deposits with banks. Cash and cash
equivalents of the company as on 31st Ashad, 2081 is as follows:

Figures in NPR
ST @ 3 Group i v Ry S | R L VUCL Teibn s G
of cash and S i b SRS ET e | Sl et L T e
B il (RS i - 31.03.2081 131.03.2080 | 31032081} 31.03.2080
Petty Cash 50,000.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 50,000.00
Cash at Banks
Everest bank Ltd 15,420,192.73 42,076,262.16 14,775,231.48 6,344,920.70
Everest bank Ltd 12,243,953.30 12,134,126.27 34,979,739.92
Sanima Bank Ltd 183,672,982.54 140,239,334 .86 4,548,064.07 33,139,886.01
NMB Bank Ltd 14,662,460.12 3,408,654.08 14,662,460.12 3,408,654.08
Nepal SBI Bank Ltd 12,501,997.96 2,799,478.40 12,501,997.96 2,799,478.40
Machhapuchhre Bank Ltd 1,845,275.38 8,174,508.23 1,845,275.38 8,174,508.23
Prabhu Bank Ltd 1,483,539.97 1,638,808.34 1,483,539.97 1,638,808.34
Nepal Investment Mega Bank Ltd 3,769,631.06 1,647,336.48 3,769,631.06 1,647,336.48
NIC Asia Bank Ltd 11,621,211.98 7,174,893.84 11,543,910.78 7,097,592.64
Siddhartha Bank Ltd 377,558.22 1,924,645.88 377,558.22 1,924,645.88
Nepal Bank Ltd 539,111.58 5,723,290.47 539,111.58 5,723,290.47
Rastriya Banijya Bank Ltd 2,784,254.32 2,019,435.90 2,784,254.32 2,019,435.90
Laxmi Sunrise Bank Ltd 4,614,457.34 15,739,174.42 4,614,457.34 15,739,174.42
Kumari Bank Ltd 82,090,230.47 10,047,660.00 82,090,230.47 10,047,660.00
Total 347,676,856.97 242,663,483.06 167,719,849.02 134,735,131.47
4.5 Advance Tax (Net)

Advance tax consists of tax withheld at source by various banks while making payment of interest on Fixed Deposit accounts held on various banks.

As advance tax is settled on net basis with tax liability, net position of advance tax is presented. The net amount of advance tax is not estimated to be
recovered/adjusted with tax liability of next year, hence is considered as non-current assets.

Details of Advance Tax

Figures in NPR
[ Raan o ST e [ STRES Ll by 2 Group Sk i) e SN VUCTHE P RE
R e O A e Lot SRS | 7 31.03.208T B = 31.03.2080 3032081 | 31032080
Advance Tax 197,859,854.74 242,116,819.28 97,648,184.79 141,905,149.33
Add: Current year 52,042,349.46 - 31,577,250.40 -
Less: Current tax liability (18,971,519.41) (44,256,964.54) (18,971,519.41) (44,256,964.54)
Advance Tax (net) 230,930,684.79 197,859,854.74 110,253,915.78 97,648,184.79
4.6 Other Current Assets
The detail of such other current assets are illustrated below: -
Figures in NPR
¥ o i AT O Group ass NS SIEE. | g — "ég\’-lfbvé'?ﬁ' £h s
IR R articulas “31.032081  J77 31.03.2080 . | 31.03.2081 ] 5. 31.03.2080
Prepaid Expenses (Insurance) 441,510.98 338,685.24 376,296.91 337,075.75
Other Advance 455,832,507.75 412,007,572.14 134,471,856.00 90,054,210.00
Staff Advance 591,843.39 - -
S~ A
Total { Y [/ 456,865,862.12 412,346,257.38 134,848,152.91 90,391,285.75
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VIDHYUT UTPADKSAs@MPANY LIMITED
_ Buddhanagar, Phndu 10, Nepal ‘
[ Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements i I
As at 31st Ashad 2081 (15th July 2024)

4.7 Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost, which equals its net realizable value. Cost comprise of all cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and conditions. The detail of such inventories are illustrated below: -

Bl Reiatin s Gronp (AWS il teRey | MRS eI S VT L A 110 Gl

31032081 ] 31032080~ | 310320810 | 31.03.2080

- 37,746.50 - 37,746.50

Electric Goods 32,890.15 11,527.00 32,890.15 11,527.00
Kitchen and Bathroom Items 35,833.48 27,709.47 35,833.48 27,709.47
Other Materials 321,931.29 116,496.12 321,931.29 116,496.12
Printing Goods 84,346.00 99,258.84 84,346.00 99,258.84
Promotional Goods h 242,434 .33 171,527.21 242,434 33 171,527.21
Stationery Goods N 48,860.21 34,142.85 48,860.21 34,142 85
Total ) / 766,295.46 498,407.99 766,295.46 498,407.99

8 M‘/ (X Y




VIDHYUT UTP#OMPANY LIMITED

4.8 Share Capital

Financial instruments issued by the Company are classified as equity only to the extent that they do not meet the definition of a financial liability or
financial assets. The Company’s equity shares are classified as equity instruments.

Details of share Capital of the Company is as under:

Authorized Capital 200,000,000 Ordinary Shares of NPR 100 each NPR 20,000,000,000
Issued Capital 100,000,000 Ordinary Shares of NPR 100 each NPR 10,000,000,000
Called up Capital 71,000,000 Ordinary Shares of NPR 100 each NPR 7,100,000,000
Less: Call in Arrears NPR 2,810,200,000
Paid up Capital 4,28,98,000 Ordinary Shares of NPR 100 each 4,289,800,000

Callin Arrears

The following called amount have not been received by the company till reporting date.
Shareholder

Figures in NPR
Nepal Electricity Authority 670,000,000.00
Employees Provident Fund 670,000,000.00
Citizen Investment Trust 335,000,000.00
Nepal Doorsanchar Company Limited 870,000,000.00
Jalvidhyut Lagani Tatha Vikash Company Limited 131,200,000.00
Rastriya Beema Sansthan 134,000,000.00
Total 2,810,200,000.00
The Shares of the Company is held by different Ministries of the Government of Nepal and public sector undertakings listed below:
Group Shareholder Ownership % * Actual Holding %**
Ministry of Energy, water resources and irrigation 20 46.62
A Ministry of Finance 5 11.66
Ministry of Law, Justice and Parliamentary Affairs 5 11.66
Nepal Electricity Authority 10 7.69
Employees Provident Fund . 10 7.69
B Citizen Investment Trust 5 3.85
Hydroelectricity Investment and Development Company Limited 4 6.26
Nepal Doorsanchar Company Limited 10 3.03
Rastriya Beema Sansthan 2 1.54
General Public 17 -
C  Locals affected by the project 10 -
Deprived/Disadvantaged families 2 -
Called Amount Pending Allotment - 6.20
Total 100 100

* Shareholding as per Memorandum of Association (based on authorized capital)
** Shareholding based on paid up share capital as on Ashad end 2081.

Figures in NPR

Ministry of Energy, Water Resources and Irrigation 2,000,000,000.00 2,000,000,000.00 2,000,000,000.00 2,000,000,000.00
Ministry of Finance 500,000,000.00 500,000,000.00 500,000,000.00 500,000,000.00
Ministry of Law, Justice and Parliamentary Affairs 500,000,000.00 500,000,000.00 500,000,000.00 500,000,000.00
Nepal Electricity Authority 330,000,000.00 330,000,000.00 330,000,000.00 330,000,000.00
Employees Provident Fund 330,000,000.00 330,000,000.00 330,000,000.00 330,000,000.00
Citizen Investment Trust 165,000,000.00 165,000,000.00 165,000,000.00 165,000,000.00
Hydroelectricity Investment and Development Comp 268,800,000.00 268,800,000.00 268,800,000.00 268,800,000.00
Nepal Doorsanchar Company Limited 130,000,000.00 130,000,000.00 130,000,000.00 130,000,000.00
Rastriya Beema Sansthan f\ 66,000,000.00 66,000,000.00 66,000,000.00 66,000,000.00
Total \ ) 4,289,800,000.00 4,289,800,000.00 4,289,800,000.00 4,289,800,000.00

/
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VIDHYUT UTP{$54#3 OMPANY LIMITED
Buddhanagg fAmandu 10, Nepal
pre R T P e AP e e T
T iNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements I

As at 31st Ashad 2081 (15th July 2024)

Reconciliation of no. of shares
No. of Shares

31.03.2081 31.03.2080
Opening 42,898,000 42,898,000 42,898,000 40,558,000
Addition during the year -
Fresh Issue - 2,340,000
Bonus Issue -
Right Issue -
Closing 42,898,000 42,898,000 42,898,000 42,898,000

Advance Towards Share Capital

Company has received amount from Government of Nepal on behalf of Ministries since previous years without making formal call on such shares.

Such amount is presented under advance towards share capital. Once the company makes call, the amount shall be transferred to share capital of
respective Ministry based on their respective share proportion.

e e o FV s b GIOUP 3 e S SRR PRV UCL R s Hror, e
¢ i s anetonariceha ety 31032081 = ™ 5310320800 | 310320810 31.03.2080
Government of Nepal (Group A shareholders) 266,000,000.00 266,000,000.00 266,000,000.00 266,000,000.00
Share in advance ( Nepal government ) 5,686,608,792.73 5,686,608,792.73 - -
Total 5,952,608,792.73 5,952,608,792.73 266,000,000.00 266,000,000.00

Retained Earning and Reserve

Retained earnings is the amount of net income left over for the business from profit generated after it has paid out dividends to its shareholders.

Reserve is allocation of amount from retained earning for specific purpose or created by way of specific transaction through other comprehensive
income, Detail of such retained earning and reserve are tabulated below:

Figures in NPR
e e D g S EARRGRE A Grou p TR I | e RS VUCE M i e
| Detailsofretained earnings and reserves | [——=rmmror 31032080 | 31032081 . 31032080
Retained Earnings 254,670,378 63 112,056,634.70 456,386,250 34 400,416,890.36
Reserves (48,765.65) - (48,765.65) -
Total 254,621,612.98 112,056,634.70 456,337,484.69 400,416,390.36

Until Previous Year, other comprehensive incomes/expenses were not incorporated on applying equity method to Investment in Associate. The
cumalative adjustment is made during the year as the amount is immaterial,

Please refer statement of changes in equity for movement in retained earning and reserve
Deferred Tax
Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary difference arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and

their carrying amount in financial statements.

Deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realized or the liability

is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax is computed using tax
rate of 25%.

Figures in NPR
Details of deferred tax iabiliies/(assets)  f——rropr—ortid S
Deferred Tax (Assets) (5,486,756.28) (5,322,654.00) (7,602,779.75)
Deferred Tax Liabilities 3,682,569.00 5,848,947.77 3,682,569.00 5,759,424.75
Other Assets (2,280,125.75)
Net Deferred Tax Liability  / (1,804,187.28) (1,753,831.98) (770,957.75) (1,843,355.00)




, ncial Statentents ]
As at 31st Ashad 2081 (15th July 2024)
Movement in deferred tax liabilities/(assets) for the current year for VUCL is as follows:

Particulars 31.03.2080 Adjustment 31.03.2081
Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets 4,090,642.00 (2,109,710.25) 1,980,931.75
Share Investment 1,668,782.75 32,854.50 1,701,637.25
Lease Liabilities (4,378,657.50) 952,814.25 (3,425,843.25)
Other Assets (2,280,125.50) 2,280,125.50 -
Leave Liability (943,996.75) (83,686.75) (1,027,683.50)
Total (1,843,355.00) 1,072,397.25 (770,957.75)

(Negative amount relates to deferred tax assets)

4.12 Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contract embodying the related financial instruments. All financial
liabilities are initially measured at transaction cost and where such values are different from the fair value, at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issue of financial liabilities (other than financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss) are added to or deducted

from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial liability. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial liabilities
at fair value through profit and loss are immediately recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

A Classification as liability or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method where the time value of money is significant. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or
redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in the statement of profit and loss.

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short
maturity of these instruments.

B De-recognition of financial liability
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an

exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

4.12.1 Employee Benefit Liabilities

The Company has schemes of employment benefits namely provident fund, employee gratuity, salaries and allowances and accumulated leave payable
as per employee service manual.

Defined contribution plan
Under defined contribution plans, provident fund, the Company pays pre-defined amounts to separate funds and does not have any legal or informal
obligation to pay additional sums. Contributions to defined contribution schemes (Provident fund) are charged to the profit or loss statement in the

year to which they relate as the company has no further defined obligations beyond monthly contributions. Contributions to defined contribution
schemes are deposited with Employees Provident Fund (Karmachari Sanchaya Kosh).

Defined Benefit Plan

Company provides gratuity facility to employee based on its employee service regulation. Such is provided based on completed years of service
method. All staffs who have completed three years in service are entitled to a gratuity of one month salary for each completed year. As none of the
employees have completed such period, gratuity has not been booked and considering the amount to be involved, actuarial valuation has not been
done.

Short term and long-term employment benefits

1. A liability is recognised foTQenefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries and allowances in the period the related service is

O
rendered at the undiscount unt offthe benefits expected to be paid in exchange for tha&c&/
I . /

Q
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ii. Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in
exchange for the related service.

iii. Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related
services are required to be recognised as a liability at the present value of the obligation as at the Balance sheet date determined based on an actuarial
valuation. However, the company has not carried out actuarial valuation this year considering cost benefit analysis, it believes that current estimates
based on accrued method are nearest approximate to such valuation.

Details of Employee Benefit Liabilities are as follows:

0 31,03.2080

Figures in NPR
ARG U iy

T 31.03.208100

¥

BT _Curreat' |\ Non Current 0] ) Current " ' | ) Non Current =
Accumulated leave 4,110,734.00 - 3,878,833.79
Leave Encashment Payable 365,472.00 225,278.00 -
Total 365,472.00 4,110,734.00 225,278.00 3,878,833.79

{Em

255 31.03,208 1 + oo GRIRINUER | ol B0 S

St c | ' Current |~ NonCurrent "] "Current. = | = Non Current
Accumulated leave 4,110,734.00 - 3,878,833.79
Leave Encashment Payable 365,472.00 225,278.00 -
Total 365,472.00 4,110,734.00 225,278.00 3,878,833.79

4.12.2 Trade and Other Payables

Trade and Other Payables includes short term liabilities of the company. These are booked on undiscounted amount as these are likely to be settled
within coming fiscal year. The detail of such payables of the company as on 31st Ashad 2081 are depicted in the table below:

Figures in NPR
wedd ot

e e S R s R S TG g Group Sipiasi 0 i AR TN
 Detail of Trade and Other Payabl SRR 31.03.208 | Set i | SR 31.03. 2080 St LR sn

AR S A S iR - _Current |  NonCurrent |~ Current' | NonCurrent |
Retention payable 10,730,747.19 54,410,924.50 10,808,113.09 47,851,615.02
Deferred Retention 579,734.72 749,724 .11 -
TDS payable 1,905,547.81 1,296,297.68 -
Salary and allowance payable 1,144,603.66 1,108,851.27 -
VAT payable 3,033,293.45 2,797,552.17 -
Contractor Association fund 3,973.59 - -
Audit fee Payable 248,600.00 305,100.00 -
Account payable 55,224,252.57 75,355,750.58 -
Total 72,870,752.99 54,410,924.50 92,421,388.90

0.01 -

iy Y

3 31032081 000 it o 31.03.2080 B el
: e R ikeEy R #50 Current | " NowCurrent: {17 U] 10 ¥ Non Current 7
Retention payable - 14,899,649.38 - 8,079,152.41
Deferred Retention 579,734.72 749,724.11 -
TDS payable 1,893,143.11 1,278,506.58 -
Salary and allowance payable 1,144,603.66 1,108,851.27 -
VAT payable 3,033,293.45 2,797,552.17 -
Contractor Association fund 3,973.59 - -
Audit fee Payable 248.,600.00 305,100.00 -
Account payable 7/ 31,102,022.14 51,233,520.16 ;
Total l / y: 38,005,370.67 14,899,649.38 57,473,254.29 8,079,152.41
4 , A :




As at 31st Ashad 2081 (15th July 2024)

Actual llabllmes of retentlon deducted during the payment to contractors are as follows.

Walba Infratech P Ltd
Fewa/Acharya JV
Paradise-Pabita JV
Wing Automobile P Ltd

Three Dots Builders P Ltd

Hydro Lab

Innovative Engineering Service
Doleshwor Mahadev Nirman Sewa
Jade NEDC JV

Aimil NS JV

N. G. Construction and Order Suppliers
Rajdevi-National -Interface-JV

3,732 387 97

2,461,234.91
4,436,420.20
63,500.00

1,537,462.26
536,635.00
117,687.50
2,426,052.66
42,734.75
125,268.85

' 27881 27592

1,935,445.66
2,374,120.16
63,500.00
93,725.84
987,583.84
176,512.50
199,025.11
117,687.50

Total /

15,479,384.10

8,828,876.53
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4.13 Other Income

Detail of such income are presented in the table below: -

ed Financial Statements il

S el i A Group Siatpiniaee ;| i
il Rl 2 TV 2050 708081 [ | FY.200-80 S| Y 208081 [ Wzo""m-so e
Insurance claim 88,900.00 255,000.00 88,900.00 255,000.00
Tendar Form Sale 160,000.00 - 160,000.00 -
Sales of Disposal Goods - 15,500.00 - 15,500.00
Miscellaneous Income 1,295,233.26 1,282,485.71 1,110,635.76 1,282,479.71
Application fee (7/8/9/10 Level) 58,000.00 102,500.00 37,000.00 102,500.00
Total 1,602,133.26 1,655,485.71 1,396,535.76 1,655,479.71
4.14 Personnel Expenses
This includes employee benefit as mentioned in note 4.12.1 for the current period.
Figures in NPR

Detaﬂs t‘)fkpers;nbh‘ﬁ expenses i

_ Group

[ FY 208081 ] FY 2079—80 7 Y '
Salary 19,737,393.15 18,176,930.49 8,220,158.65 7,083,530.00
Provident Fund Contribution 1,880,545.46 1,639,238.50 822,015.86 708,353.00
Responsibility Allowance 8,870,386.23 6,838,762.00 8,870,386.23 6,392,570.00
Transportation Allowance 420,000.00 - 420,000.00 -
Performance Allowance 8,160,920.94 8,429,643.86 397,500.00 556,000.00
Field Allowance 322,344.00
Dashain Incentive 699,986.00 614,187.00 699,986.00 614,187.00
Medical Allowance 1,456,823.00 1,356,838.00 661,800.00 581,920.00
Uniform 399,800.00 - 169,800.00 -
Overtime Allownce 613,299.55 360,509.53 613,299.55 360,509.53
Annual and Sick leave 1,200,545.82 1,591,234.36 1,200,545.82 1,591,234.36
Other allowance (Nalgad) 151,500.00
Total 43,913,544.15 39,007,343.74 22,075,492.11 17,888,303.89

4.15 Administrative and Other Operating Expenses

General and administrative expenses represent the necessary costs to maintain the company's daily operations and administer its business.

Details of such expenses are illustrated below:

_ Fi tgures in NPR
i Detaals of admmistratwe and oth@r operating W Group e ] B "\VUCLff—%s 5
i _ expemses Y 2030310 T FY IO TFY 203081 S EIE

Travel and Perdiem -

Domestic 79,077.50 157,662.60 79,077.50 157,662.60

International 804,088.80 - 804,088.80 -
Office Rent

Rent Expenses 2,560,017.88 1,836,689.88 17.88 36,689.88

Lease Finance Charge 1,630,854.20 2,407,973.26 1,630,854.20 2,407,973.26
Printing and Stationery 1,513,089.00 1,155,050.18 381,075.46 321,279.79
Postage and Telephone 669,339.77 699,343.33 381,139.57 296,574.33
Water and Electricity 545,047.06 398,115.32 215,651.80 164,618.00
Fuel and Lubricants 3,335,970.67 2,994,771.24 2,222,533.61 1,921,749.82
Expendable Office Materials 117,269.91 165,688.86 117,269.91 165,688.86
Books and News paper 28,615.00 20,175.00 28,615.00 20,175.00
Office expenses 241,944.83 152,777.81 241,944 .83 152,777.81
Repair and Maintenance Equipment 379,050.87 54,806.51 160,734.87 54,806.51
Repair and maintenance Vehicle 2,962,163.00 2,185,994.58 2,489,905.97 1,715,611.75
Repair and Maintenance Furniture 27,087.00 7,200.00 27,087.00 7,200.00
Insurance Premium- Asset: 528,380.95 601,210.90 528,380.9 601,210.90
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other oper:
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. 5 HE L FY 2080800 | ~ O FY 207980 | e
Insurance Premlum— Employee 82,005.30 36,311.64 82 005 30 36, 31 1 64
Training and development 1,506,132.43 1,070,718.79 1,302,800.23 593,561.99
Meeting Allowance 6,716,100.00 4,350,200.00 3,796,100.00 2,607,200.00
Meeting Expenses 320,717.09 189,109.64 320,717.09 189,109.64
Audit Fee

External Audit fee 498,600.00 498,600.00 248,600.00 248,600.00
Other fee 550,300.00 550,300.00 350,300.00 350,300.00
Audit Expenses 59,645.00 44,037.99 59,645.00 44,037.99
License and Renewal Expenses 646,776.92 728,923.17 468,056.00 489,717.90
Business Promotion 226,916.88 332,037.90 226,916.88 332,037.90
Advertisement and Publicity 1,846,392.37 586,363.60 316,262.45 398,407.60
Annual General Meeting or Anniversary 512,360.20 316,100.21 512,360.20 316,100.21
Guest Reception and Public Relation 136,433.59 39,656.99 136,433.59 39,656.99
Consultancy Fee 2,658,030.00 1,096,105.00 625,250.00 249,550.00
Bank Charges 1,996.00 3,018.26 1,676.00 2,708.26
Recruitment Expenses 564,790.00 2,178.481.19 564,790.00 2,178,481.19
Staffs Uniform 420,603.56 563,094.70 420,603.56 353,094.70
Monitoring & Evaluating Expenses 3,610.00 453,811.00 3,610.00 -
Miscellaneous Expenses 3,414,833.57 1,147,162.28 151,152.99 151,122.00
Monitoring and Evaluation Expense 597,156.00
Write Off 7,818.06 - 7,818.06 -
Total 36,193,213.41 27,021,491.83 18,903,474.70 16,604,016.52
4.16  License fee, Feasibility, Environmental Study and other cost of Projects
Various project related expenses are incorporated within this heading. Project wise detail are tabulated as below:
Fi _Figuresin NPR
e Detauls of license fee, feaSlbllltb enyironment; TR g Group T e T ] A deis i VUCL i i L
. study and other'cost of pro;ect?’i““ §E "FY 20 2080-81 Sl 0 FY 2079-80. | FY 208081 | Y 2079-80 |
Mugu Karnali Hydro Electric Project 83,758,475.36 60,077,130.25 83,758,475.36 60,077,130.25
Solar Project 920,145.67 920,145.67 24,500.00
Nalsinghgad Hydro Electric Project - 4,000,000.00
Taksu Khola Hydro Electric Project 800,000.00 2,000,000.00
New Project - 24,500.00
Total 85,478,621.03 66,101,630.25 84,678,621.03 60,101,630.25
4.17 Depreciation and amortization

In line with note 4.1 and 4.3, depreciation and amortization is as follows:

Fi igures in NPR

G l‘oup i S

Bt - VUCLAG £ ORI =0,

— FY 205031

iy FarEy 4 iy
Deprecwtlon 18 ,865,227. 56 9 926 565 33 7,681,838.66 7,238,029.95
Amortization 253,041.51 157,577.71 253,041.51 157,577.71
Depreciation on RUA m 2,448.431.68 4,807,061.60 2,448.431.68 4,807,061.60

Total / / 21,566,700.75 14,891,204.64 10,383,311.85 12,2402,669.26

y
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Finance Income

Finance income includes interest income earned from call account opened in various bank, interest income earned from fixed deposits
opened in various bank and interest on retention. The detail of such income are presented below in the table:

Figures in NPR

{ ance inco 1

e Wwﬂ'}w ¥

I—VUCLI’j e

Interest Income on call deposit 3 217,729. 41 3 058,793.17 3,217, 729 41 3, 058 793.17
Interest Income from FD 343,731,467.78 440,456,865.47 207,297,474.21 271,852,089.34
Interest Income-Retention 753,856.64 402,507.49 753,856.64 402,507.49
Total 347,703,053.83 443,918,166.13 211,269,060.26 275,313,390.00
Gain(Loss) on Equity Method Accounting of Associates
Details of gain(loss) on equity method accounting of associates is as follows:
Fi lgures in NPR
Details of gain(loss) on equity method il | et s Group iEE | AR VUCLE :
‘accounting of associates = FY 2080-81 | FY. 2079-80 W FY 2080-81 0 10 FY 20?9»80 5
Betan Karnali Sanchaya Karta Hydro Power
Company Ltd (4,135,087.33) (421,591.65) (4,135,087.33) (421,591.65)
NEA Engineering Company Limited 5,334,231.10 2,947,385.03 5,334,231.10 2,947,385.03
Simbuwa Remit Hydro Ltd. (116,924.00) (778,452.84) (116,924.00) (778,452.84)
Jagdulla Hydropower Ltd. 308,562.69 7,869,247.19 308,562.69 7.869,247.19
Remit Hydro Ltd. (1,210,599.01) (41,842.79) (1,210,599.01) (41,842.79)
Total 180,183.45 9,574,744.94 180,183.45 9,574,744.94

Current Tax Expenses

Current income tax for the current are measured at the amount expected to be paid to the taxation authorities based on the taxable income
for the period. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the current tax amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date and applicable for the period. Tax rate of 25% is considered on taxable income.

F igures in NPR
i & e i Gmup r e SR »;‘.n'»“‘ R B0k R
b ‘ i A TRy A | FY 2080-81 00 | 10 FY. 2079980 " S EY 2080«81 W EY2079-80
Income tax on current year taxable proﬁt 18,971,519.41 44,256,964.54 18,971,519.41 44,256,964.54
Prior year tax adjustment - -
Total 18,971,519.41 44,256,964.54 18,971,519.41 44,256,964.54
Current year income tax expenses of the company (VUCL) is arrived in the following manner:
Particulars FY 2080-81 FY 2079-80
Profit as per Financial Statement (Before Tax) 76,051,023.14 179,344,487.24
Add: Inadmissible Expenses
Depreciation as per books 10,383,311.85 12,202,669.26
Repairs as per books 2,677,727.84
Provision for leave encashment 1,200,545.82 1,573,084.90
Loss on equity method accounting of associates (180,183.45) (9,574,744.94)
Finance cost on lease 1,630,854.20 402,507.49
Less: Deductible Expenses
Depreciation as per Income Tax Act (7,250,539.93) (6,817,298.82)
Repairs as per Income Tax Act (2,215,906.11)
Leave paid (968,645.61) (102,846.97)
Actual rent paid (5,442,110.12) -
Net Taxable Income 75,886,077.63 177,027,858.16
Tax Rate 25% ¥ 25% 25%
Total Tax of current year [ / 18,971,519.41 44,256,964.54
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For the Period ended 31st Ashad 2081 (15th July 2024)
Explanatory Notes
Related Party Transaction
Subsidiaries

The company has made investments in Nalgad Hydropower Company Limited. As the Company has control over these entities, these companies are

considered to be related parties. There is no commercial transaction with the companies during the year.

Directors and their relatives
The total composition of Board of Directors as per the Articles of Association of the Company is nine, as below:

Directors appointed by shareholders of Group A
Directors appointed by shareholders of Group B
From General Public

Independent Director (Hydropower Expert)
Independent Director (Finance Expert)

Total

o= = NN W

Currently there are seven directors in the Company. Since the company has not made public issue of shares, there is no representation in the Board
from the public. Board members are paid meeting allowances @ Rs. 7,000 per meeting. Any other facilities are not provided.

<! 3k

Existing committee as at Reporting Date

Ms. Sarita Dawadi Chairman 14,000.00 - 14,000.00
Mr. Sandeep Kumar Dev Director 175,000.00 84,000.00 259,000.00
Mr. Ram Prasad Acharya Director 21,000.00 28,000.00 49,000.00
Mr. Kul Man Ghising Director 42,000.00 - 42,000.00
Mr. Birendra Paudel Director 154,000.00 350,000.00 504,000.00
Mr. Kalyan Raj Sharma Independent Director 161,000.00 175,000.00 336,000.00
Mr. Surya Prasad Rijal Independent Director 175,000.00 91,000.00 266,000.00
During the year, following members were empaneled in the Board of the Company, with following benefits

Mr. Sushil Chandra Tiwari ~ Ex Chairman 56,000.00 - 56,000.00
Mr. Gopal Prasad Sigdel Ex Chairman 63,000.00 - 63,000.00
Mr. Dinesh Kumar Ghimire  Ex Chairman 63,000.00 - 63,000.00
Mr. Chiranjeewee Chataut Ex. Director 7,000.00 49,000.00 56,000.00
Mr. Dhundi Prasad Niraula  Ex. Director 56,000.00 98,000.00 154,000.00
Mr. Bhupal Baral Ex. Director 63,000.00 7,000.00 70,000.00
Total 1,050,000.00 882,000.00 1,932,000.00

Chief Executive Officer

There has been no transaction with the key management personnel other than payment of salary and benefits as per the Administrative Bylaws of the

Company beside that the company has paid meeting allowance to CEO @ Rs. 7000 per meeting for 79 no. of meetings. During the year, the following
personnel served in the position of Chief Executive Officer.

P

———
Mr. Surya Prasad

Rijal Managing Director Upto 21st Shrawan 2081 137,062.50

137,062.50

Mr. Bakhat Bahadur Shahi Chief Executive Officer  From 20th Shrawan 2081 3,408,791.67 553,000.00 3,961,791.67

Associates

Karnali Sanchaya Karta Hydro Power Cq jtd., and NEA Engineering Company Ltd. During the year, there has not been any
transactions with such companies except f A Engineerirg Company Limited.

The Company has significant interest in Jagdulla Hydropower Company Limited, Simbuwa Remit Hydro Limited, Remit Hydro Limite

*X o (& 77
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The transaction and outstanding balances with NEA Engineering Company Ltd. are as follows:

[Transaction and balance S SR o peg0s0-8te T 2079-80 ¢
Expenses booked for consultancy services received: (Without VAT) 66,086,943.39
Payable balance 26,917,664.42 47,052,544.69

Lease Liabilities

Lease accounting has been done as per the requirement of NFRS 16 with accounting of Right of Use Assets and Lease Liability at initial recognition
in earlier years. Subsequently, depreciation on Right of Use Assets is accounted in straight line basis. For payment of lease, the total payment amount

is segregated to settlement of lease liability and finance cost on lease. Depreciation and finance cost on lease are included in the statement of profit or
loss.

Figures in NPR

SRE31.05.208 [ PR 31,03.2080 PRI ERI0NT
: Ry ; & ~ | Current |5 Non Current |\ Current = ]2 Non Currentl )|
Lease Liabilities 4,211,840.74 9,491,531.90 3,811,255.92 13,703,372.64

Total 4,211,840.74 9,491,531.90 3,811,255.92 13,703,372.64

Events after the Reporting Date
There are no other material events that occurred after the reporting date that require adjustments to or disclosure in the Financial Statements.

Regrouping and Rearranging of figures
Previous year’s figures are regrouped or rearranged wherever necessary, without material impact to financial statements.

Dividend
No any dividend has been proposed by the Board.

Corporate Social Responsibility, Labor Act and Social Security Act, Bonus Act

Company has not provided 1% of net profit as Corporate Social Responsibility, as required by Industrial Enterprises Act. Company has not provided
several facilities as required by Labour Act and Social Security Act.

Company does not have permanent employee and accordingly is not required to account for bonus as per Bonus Act.

Risk Management objectives and policies

The Company’s business activities expose to a variety of risks, namely primarily to fluctuations in liquidity risk, interest rate risk and credit risk. The
Company's Board and senior management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management. The
Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyses the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and

controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market
conditions and the Company's activities.

i. Credit Risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company.

[Exposure to Credit Risk (by nature ofassets) T [0 31.03.208100 | 31.03.2080.

Cash and cash equivalent 347,676,856.97 134,685,131.47
Investment in fixed deposit 3,775,415,102.72 2,648,776,736.52
Other financial assets 240,000.00 8,352,445.00
Total ~— / 4,123,331,959.69 2,791,814,312.99
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ii. Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will face in meeting its obligations associated with its financial liabilities. The Company’s approach to
managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses. In doing this,

management considers both normal and stressed conditions. A material and sustained shortfall in our cash flow could create potential business
continuity risk.

In order to control liquidity risk and for better working capital management, the Company's Finance department regularly monitors the cash position to
ensure it has sufficient cash on-going basis to meet operational needs. Any short term surplus cash received or created, over and above the amount
required for working capital management, investment in companies and other operational requirements, are investment in the form of fixed deposit.

Maturity Profile of Financial Instruments
The maturity profile of financial assets and liabilities of the company are as follows:

As at 31.03.2081

Particulags 0 Within 6 months = """ 6 month to 12.months | 1\ " After12 months. |
Financial Assets

Fixed Deposits 3,775,415,102.72 - -
Cash and Cash Equivalent 347,676,856.97 - -
Other Financial Assets - - 240,000.00
Total 4,123,091,959.69 - 240,000.00
Financial Liabilities

Employee Benefit Liabilities 365,472.00 - 4,110,734.00
Trade and Other Payable 72,870,752.99 - 54,410,924.50
Total 73,236,224.99 - 58,521,658.50

As at 31.03.2080

Particulars Within 6 months 6 month to 12 months After 12 months
Financial Assets

Fixed Deposits 2,648,776,736.52 - -
Cash and Cash Equivalent 134,735,131.47 - -
Other Financial Assets - 200,000.00 240,320.00
Total 2,783,511,867.99 200,000.00 240,320.00
Financial Liabilities

Employee Benefit Liabilities 225,278.00 3878833.79
Trade and Other Payable 57,473,254.29 8,079,152.42
Total 57,698,532.29 - 11,957,986.21

iii. Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s investment in fixed deposit and surplus
cash kept in call deposit. Since, the interest rate risk is influenced by market forces, company has little role to play for minimizing this risk.

Sensitivity Analysis on Fluctuations on Interest

The company's return is most affected by the changes in interest rate in market. Accordingly, Company has carried out sensitivity analysis of impact

on interest income on fixed deposits if the interest rate were up or down by 1%, the profitability of the company would have changed by an estimated
amount of Rs. 1.3 crores.

5.8 Capital Management
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of
the company. The Company manages its capital so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, create funds for investment to be made in

companies and in future, to provide for dividend to shareholders. Company issues call for payment of share capital based on fund requirement for
, making investment in companies related to hydropower generation.

/ Till date, no any dividend has been paid out to shareholders.
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Fair Value Hierarchy

The fair value measurements of financial assets and liabilities on fair value hierarchy is as follows:

As at 31.03.2081

Particulars = =0 0 Measuredat 0o Carrying Amount Fair Value Wl Eevell

Financial Assets

Investment in Subsidiaries Fair Value 10,000,000 10,000,000 Level 3
Investment in Associates Fair Value 1,097,986,549 1,097,986,549 Level 3
Other investment in Equity Shares  Fair Value 2,550,000 2,550,000 Level 3
Investment in Fixed Deposit Amortized Cost 3,775,415,103 3,775,415,103 Level 1
Cash and Cash Equivalents Fair Value 347,676,857 347,676,857 Level 1
Other Financial Assets Amortized Cost 240,000 240,000 Level 3
Total Financial Assets 5,233,868,509.0 5,233,868,509.0

Financial Liabilities

Employee Benefit Liabilities Amortized Cost 4,476,206 4,476,206 Level 3
Trade & other Payable Amortized Cost 52,905,020 52,905,020 Level 3
Total Financial Liabilities 57,381,226.00 57,381,226.00

As at 31.03.2080

Particulars Measured at Carrying Amount CarryEE Amount Fair Value Level
Financial Assets

Investment in Subsidiaries Fair Value 10,000,000 10,000,000 Level 3
Investment in Associates Fair Value 912,855,131 912,855,131 Level 3
Other investment in Equity Shares Fair Value 2,550,000 2,550,000 Level 3
Investment in Fixed Deposit Amortized Cost 2,648,776,737 2,648,776,737 Level 3
Cash and Cash Equivalents Fair Value 134,735,132 134,735,132 Level 1
Other Financial Assets Amortized Cost 440,320 440,320 Level 3
Total Financial Assets 3,709,357,320 3,709,357,320

Financial Liabilities

Employee Benefit Liabilities Amortized Cost 4,104,112 4,104,112 Level 3
Trade & other Payable Amortized Cost 65,552,407 65,552,407 Level 3
Total Financial Liabilities 69,656,519 69,656,519

Lien on company's assets

The company's assets have not been pledged anywhere.

Contingent Liability

The Company recognizes contingent liability when a possible obligation arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity or company as a present obligation as a
result of past events which is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to

settle the obligation; or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. All adjusting events are considered for appropriate
reflection in the current financial year.

Bank Guarantee
There is no unexpired bank guarantee.

Litigations or legal cases

b.1) A legal case with Department of Electricity Development (DoED) regarding license of Veri-1 Reservoir HE project is pending till end of the
Ashad 2081. Company obtained license for survey of the project for which Company deposited Rs. 12,000,000.00 license fee as per decision made by
DoED and requested vide Pa.Sa. 2074/075 (Permission letter) Cha.No. 02 dated 02.04.2074 for deposit of Rs. 12,000,000.00 against license fee.
However, later DoED has issued the license for different area than requested by company. Company submitted a letter notifying that the company is
not interested in the area determined by DoED and requested to refund the license fee. DoED responded as being unable to refund the fee deposited by

company. Company has lodged a for mandamus, certiorari at Supreme Court on 11.02.2075. supreme court has dismissed the claim subsequent
to reporting date.
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¢) Capital Commitment
Capital contract remaining to be executed on various works amounts to Rs. 32,872,000.00
As at 31.03.2081

_amount —  amount TR Aaaah
24,654,000.00 8,218,000.00 - 8,218,000.00
Total 24,654,000.00 8,218,000.00 - 8,218,000.00
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